
   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                                   Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   April 8, 2013 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ Year Employees – Informational item only. 

 
2. Presentation of Awards – Informational item only. 

 
3. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
4. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
5. Approval of March 11, 2013 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes – For possible action. 
 
6. Receive a Report on the Status of Project NEON – Informational Item Only. 
 
7.  Approval of Contracts over $5,000,000 – For possible action.   
 
8. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
9. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
10. Relinquishments – For possible action. 
 

a. Disposal of NDOT property located along portions of Flamingo Road (former route 
SR-592) at Las Vegas Boulevard in Clark County, NV  SUR 11-17 
 

b. Disposal of NDOT property located along US-50 at SR-305 (Austin/Battle Mountain 
Road) in the County of Lander, NV  SUR 11-20 

 
11. Approval of Amendments and Administrative Modifications to the FFY 2012-2015 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – For possible action. 
 
12. Approval of the first Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the Carlin Tunnels 

Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) project – For possible action. 
 
13. Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated March 18, 2013 – Informational item only. 

 
  



14. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
15. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Clark County    
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   200 Lewis Avenue 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
Lander County 
315 South Humboldt Street 
Battle Mountain, Nevada 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 March 18, 2013 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: April 8, 2013, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 2: Presentation of Awards – Informational Item Only 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This item is to recognize the Department of Transportation and staff for awards and recognition 
received. 
 
Background: 
 
National Asphalt Pavement Association 
QUALITY IN CONSTRUCTION AWARD  
U.S. 93 Overlay Project near Currie 
 
Pavement overlays are a vital part of NDOT’s pavement preservation program. NDOT 
contractor Granite Construction recently received the National Asphalt Pavement Association’s 
award for excellence in asphalt paving for a pavement overlay project in northeastern Nevada. 
The project used cold in-place recycling to resurface 19 miles of U.S. 93 near Currie. 
 
The cold in-place recycle technique reuses the existing pavement surface and smoothes it back 
down as part of an improved roadway. Using existing road material not only saves the cost of 
new material, but also minimizes waste. 
 
NDOT partnered extensively with Granite to successfully complete the project on time despite 
the area’s high elevation and subsequently short paving season. 
 
Renown Children’s Hospital 
THANK YOU LETTER 
For Assistance with Medical Transport of Sick Infant 
 
NDOT receives many letters of thanks from citizens and various partner agencies. This thank 
you letter from Renown Children's Hospital was particularly special:  
 
"Our (medical) transport team was called to pick up a premature infant in respiratory distress in 
Quincy, California. REMSA arranged to have a snow plow meet the ambulance on highway 395 
north. The ambulance followed the snow plow to the California/Nevada border where a Caltrans 
snow plow took over. We can't begin to thank each individual team member for their dedication 
and perseverance in providing safe transport for our very tiny patient. The baby has since been 
discharged home." 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



NDOT PARTNERING PROGRAM AWARDS 
Gold and Silver Awards  
 
NDOT’s Partnering Program establishes facilitated, structured partnering to build successful 
road projects without the cost and delay of construction-related claims. Through the Partnering 
Program, the state has greatly reduced road construction-related claims, and saved 
immeasurable amounts of money and staff time.  
 
The Department recently recognized the following road projects in our third annual Partnering 
Program awards: 
 
Gold Award – West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build 
 
NDOT’s West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project utilized an innovative Accelerated 
Bridge Construction technique to build new I-15 bridges next to existing bridges. Each existing 
bridge was then demolished, and new bridges slid into place overnight, reducing bridge 
construction time by six months while still allowing interstate traffic to flow smoothly using exit 
and on-ramps.  
 
The nationally-recognized project was a great success in part by closely involving and bringing 
together stakeholders and subcontractors to develop construction innovations and cohesion.  
Innovative project design changes also provided an improved, and more efficiently-constructed, 
project.  
 
The project was substantially completed within 361 calendar days, or four days ahead of the 
advanced schedule and six months ahead of the original schedule. 
 
Silver Award – U.S. 95 Improvement Project- Hawthorne/Walker Lake 
 
NDOT’s project to mill and repave 20 miles of U.S. 95 from Hawthorne north, including ADA 
enhancements to improve and smoothen sidewalks and driveway entrances within Hawthorne 
and 14 miles of guardrail improvements, received the silver award. 
 
Alongside Walker Lake, construction required diligent coordination of material delivery and 
maintenance of traffic. Meanwhile within Hawthorne, businesses played a key role by making 
suggestions on how to reduce impacts to their operations. Daily review and discussion of any 
construction issues and opportunities yielded improved quality and reduced construction traffic 
delays. 
 
The quality project completed two months ahead of schedule, under budget, without any safety 
violations or incidents. 
 
Silver Award – I-15 South Design-Build 
 
NDOT’s I-15 South Design-Build Project widened and improved I-15 south of the Las Vegas 
Strip. New and reconstructed overpasses were built to help traffic flow and collector-distributor 
roads constructed to ease congestion and increase safety by taking merging traffic off of I-15.  
 
Structured partnering was outlined in charter to closely involve NDOT, the contractor, 
subcontractors and multiple stakeholders such as LVCVA, Clark County, NV Energy, UPRR and 
others. The project also saw Nevada’s first use of a self-propelled modular transporter and vital 
detours to help reduce impacts of long-term bridge construction road closures. 
The award-winning project completed well under budget. 



Silver Award – I-80 Design-Build 
 
NDOT’s I-80 Design-Build project reconstructed Interstate 80 through the heart of Reno, 
including replacing concrete as much as 40 years old in areas. Additional lanes and signing, 
striping, ramp and other improvements were also made.  
 
Daily meetings at many project levels, from project managers to trade and craft foremen, helped 
keep the project on schedule and readily identify potential innovations and improvements. 
 
More than 250 stakeholders were involved in a collaborative effort to lessen construction 
impacts on local businesses, residents and commuters, including a business patronage 
program. The project opened to traffic 82 days ahead of schedule and completed with zero 
potential claims.  
 
Silver Award – U.S. 95 Winnemucca-Area Repaving 
 
NDOT’s partnering process also makes for more efficient, effective improvements to rural 
roadways. When an NDOT project milled and repaved rural U.S. 95 approximately 30 miles 
north of Winnemucca, core roadway samples were taken to ensure that paving would not 
delaminate, or separate, from the roadbase. The preventative measure saved an estimated 
$148,000. Other potential project issues were identified and resolved at the most immediate and 
lowest level, often between project foremen and inspectors. Another example of collaboration: 
when the contractor’s pilot car failed, NDOT stepped in to provide temporary pilot car service so 
work could continue uninterrupted.  
 
The project was completed more than $200,000 under cost, and the traveling public only 
experienced construction delays for 38 of the project’s 60 working days. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This is an informational item only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Meg Ragonese, Public Information Officer 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

1 

Governor Brian Sandoval 
Lieutenant Governor Brian Krolicki 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 
Frank Martin 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Bill Hoffman 
Dennis Gallagher  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Sandoval: I will call the Department of Transportation Board of Director’s Meeting to 
order.  I will begin with Item 1 on the Agenda, which is receive Director’s 
Report.  Director Malfabon, good morning. 

Malfabon: Good morning, Governor, Members.  Thank you.  Last month as you recall 
we had some of the 25 year recognition from the AASHTO.  And actually 
since Tracy is here today we’re going to go ahead and take one more photo 
op.  She was in Las Vegas last time, so we’ll take a photo op with her for the 
25-year award. 

And we also have our annual award winner from our employee recognition 
program.  And what that is, is that employee recognition program is funded 
through a grant from the Western Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials, WASHTO, so all the Western State DOTs.  And 
we have the annual winner, Kendall Marlar, here from Elko.  He works on a 
maintenance crew up there.  But I wanted to mention to the Board before 
Kendall comes up for his photo op what he’s won for.  On March 9, 2012, 
Kendall was driving in his NDOT vehicle.  He noticed that he was flagged 
down by somebody that needed assistance.  He parked his equipment, got 
out to see what they needed, and he discovered that their friend was pinned 
against the business’ entrance by his own vehicle, in which the individual 
had left in gear.  Kendall was able to calm the situation down and then 
proceeded to try and place the vehicle in reverse to release the person 
pinned, but the truck would not go into reverse.  At once, and without 
hesitation, he shut off the vehicle, placed it in neutral and rolled it back, 
releasing the person pinned.  He had noticeable injuries, but his quick 
response helped saved this person from a more drastic fate as far as we 
know. 

So we’re very proud that he won that recognition, the annual award where 
all NDOT employees that receive recognition are judged.  So with that, 
we’ll do a couple of photo ops with the Board, and then we’ll go on to the 
rest of Director’s Report. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

2 

Sandoval: Congratulations. 

Fransway: Now all we need’s another 25. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Kendall and Tracy, and congratulations once again.  Moving on 
with rest of the Director’s Report, I wanted to give the Board an update on 
legislative matters.  We’ve had our work session and hearing on the 
Construction Manager at Risk, CMAR, process for NDOT.  We want to 
eliminate the two-year sunset clause.  That went well.  We had a lot of 
support from our contractors that have been involved in the process and 
have observed as well as worked on the process. 

We also have -- this week we have hearings on the bridge weight limits bill 
that NDOT has submitted, and also the road relinquishments bill which we 
probably have a lot more work to do.  It’s been -- we’ve attempted to reach 
out to the League of Cities and Nevada Association of Counties, and it’s 
something that it’s getting to the point where it’s not as effective as what the 
original intent of the bill was, but we’ve been trying to work out the 
differences.  But that bill will be heard later this week.  We also have our 
budget hearing planned for Thursday of this week.  So Budget Director Jeff 
Mohlenkamp will also be present at our hearing since we are a substantial 
part of the State budget. 

 A little update on some other CMAR related issues.  Carlin Tunnels Project 
is the CMAR project that the Board previously approved.  We expect to 
have the next phase of the Board approval, which is the approval of the 
contractor’s guaranteed maximum price for the Carlin Tunnels.  It’s actually 
going to be split in two elements because it’s such a different variety of 
work on that project.  So the roadway portion expected to be around the $4 
million range will be in the April Board meeting.  So next month we’ll have 
the guaranteed maximum price approval for that.  And May is the 
conclusion of negotiations and presentation to the Board for the guaranteed 
maximum price for tunnel lighting and bridge, so the other elements that 
were a very distinctive part of that work in April. 

 On the Tahoe Bike Path project, we expect to have the guaranteed maximum 
price to the Board in June for your approval.  And the reason that’s taking a 
little bit longer is we have to get some environmental approvals for some 
additional areas that were not originally covered in the original concept, but 
we’re working with one of the resource agencies up at Tahoe to get 
coverage of the bike path to an area that was previously not cleared 
environmentally. 

 On other news of national importance for DOTs, I did attend the AASHTO 
Washington briefing.  It was actually the same week as -- you had a 
Governor’s conference, and you had just left when I got into town.  So we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

3 

had good coverage that week in Washington.  The issue of that week, as you 
know, Governor, was sequestration and the impacts of that to not only the 
transportation sector, but all of the sectors of the national economy.  But in 
terms of what sequestration means for us as a Department of Transportation, 
it doesn’t have huge impacts, but it did have some impacts.  There’s a 
program called Equity Bonus where a certain amount of the transportation 
funding is split out amongst the states.  Nevada is a recipient of more federal 
funds that we put in.  They collect from our state.  So other states, Equity 
Bonus is more of an important issue to them, but it would cause a -- it’s 
estimated to be a slight cut of about 400 to 450,000, that range, of funds 
from the federal government. 

 The other portion that could result in a slight funding cut is in the issue of 
continuing resolution.  So Congress has not passed a budget.  We’re 
operating under a continuing resolution through March 27.  The House of 
Representatives recently passed their version of a continuing resolution 
through the rest of the fiscal year, and we would get a cut of about $2 
million.  So we’ve let our financial people know so that they could program 
the federal funds accordingly.  They say that it’s not going to cause a huge 
impact to our program, because we anticipate under the current 
authorization we get about $320 million a year.  So that, in total about two 
and a half million dollar cut between the sequestration, the equity bonus cut 
and the continuing resolution reduction, that it would not have a significant 
impact, but it does have a slight impact. 

 The other thing to report, we did meet with our delegation and told each 
member about the importance of having some assurance of receipt of those 
federal transportation funds.  So the next action is the expiration of MAP-21 
is about a year and a half away.  So in terms of how much time they have to 
put into it to get something to pass, they have already started doing some 
hearings on how MAP-21 is being enacted, and they’ll actually start on the 
reauthorization of that transportation bill soon, and the transportation 
committees will get that passed through Congress. 

 Also, I was named Chairman of the standing committee on highway traffic 
safety.  It’s a very important role in trying to work with all of the State 
DOTs and AASHTO to drive down the number of fatalities on our 
highways, as well as what we do in our own home State here in Nevada. 

 Some project updates for the Board.  Meadowood Mall Interchange, we had 
mentioned that we’re still shooting for this month to get the freeway lanes 
back to their original configuration, so get that portable rail out of the way, 
get the traffic shifted back to where they should be in the lanes, and 
hopefully get the speed limit back up to 65 miles per hour in that section. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

4 

There will also be a little bit of work that’s temperature dependent that 
should be done this spring still.  And I had already reported to the Board that 
there is a claim or a request for compensation for 1.4 million on behalf of 
the drilling subcontractor related to use of a material called self-
consolidating concrete.  So the contractor was saying because NDOT 
required that, specified that, and we had trouble with it on the project, it’s 
your fault NDOT, and NDOT obviously is reviewing their materials that 
they provided, but we disagree at that time.  We understand that that’s not 
the only issued involved in that project.  There will be another claim for all 
the other issues that were either related to things that they encountered on 
the project that cost more money for them.  But we’re hearing that in terms 
of how much money, they’re saying approximately five million which 
includes about the one and a half million for the drilling subcontractor.  So a 
substantial amount of money that they’re saying that they’re owed, and time, 
so we’ll work those issues out, but we are setting up the administrative 
process of a Claims Review Board here.  It’s not binding.  In fact, the 
contractor could elect to go to court to get the money back that they feel 
they’re owed, but we’ll do our best to go through the administrative process 
of the Claims Review Board. 

 On Project NEON you’ll see two contracts later on in the meeting before the 
Board for approval.  But just as an update, we did go through the selection 
process for legal services and financial advisor services.  So these legal and 
financial advisors will give us support as we go through the process of 
hiring a firm, a team that will finance and design and construct the Project 
NEON, and possibly look at operations and maintenance as well as elements 
of that contract. 

 One of the issues that we had to respond to recently was the hiring of the 
legal firm, Nossaman.  Nossaman had been working with NDOT previously 
on development of our P3 program, and they were the successful selection 
this time around.  But there was a lot of concern with the firms that were 
local Nevada firms that they didn’t get the work.  But the process was a fair 
process.  It was -- we did use federal aid, so we can’t have local preferences 
on federal aid contracts.  But we had representatives from the Attorney 
General’s Office from both NDOT and I think it was Public Works was the 
other agency that allowed us the use of their (inaudible).  And the thing is, 
Governor and Board members, we don’t have a lot of public-private 
partnership deals struck in Nevada, so there is not a lot of Nevada 
experience on that.  So typically we expected to see that it would be an out-
of-state firm teaming up with a local firm.  I believe that Nossaman 
probably has a local office, but it’s primarily the expertise is outside of the 
state of legal services at this time. 

On the financial side, Ernst and Young beat out one of the firms that had 
been previously working for NDOT as financial advisor on the P3 program, 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

5 

but Ernst and Young, again, it was a fair process with several members on 
the team that they listened to the presentations, read the proposals, rank 
them accordingly.  Those scores are collected by admin services, so there’s 
not a lot of discussion while they’re putting down their points on their 
scoring.  So it’s a fair process.  And Ernst and Young was the successful 
provider that we are proposing today in a later Board item. 

 An update to the Board on Boulder City Bypass, we have the current project 
out for fencing and plant salvage.  The next phase of the project is utility 
relocation and construction of the frontage road.  We anticipate that it’s 
going to advertise this fiscal year.  As I mentioned previously to the Board, 
we’re using federal earmarked for that construction.  And I previously 
mentioned that there were some issues with eminent domain.  Primarily one 
of the properties, Jericho Heights, I wanted to mention today that we 
received a counter-offer from them very recently, last week.  We’ll work at 
doing our due diligence on that counter-offer.  But I just wanted to update 
the Board that we did receive that and we also are asking the court for more 
time to allow us to conduct discovery on that case for Jericho Heights. 

 You may see some reports because I believe that the counsel for the other 
party is going to reporters to try to pressure the State to settle on that.  We 
don’t feel that that’s wise for us to just take their number and run with it, so 
we’ll do our due diligence in investigating the feasibility of accepting that 
offer.  But our outside counsel, I wanted to mention, Laura Fitzsimmons has 
been a great asset for us working for the State on this case, training our 
people on what to avoid and what to do to avoid these types of eminent 
domain cases in the future.  And she’s taking a well-needed vacation right 
now, too. 

 Later on this week, Governor, I’ll be present tomorrow at the Board of 
Examiners meeting for the Blue Diamond RV Settlement.  It was a property 
adjacent to Blue Diamond Road when we widened the freeway near the 
bridge over the railroad tracks.  We had to elevate the road.  And the 
property owner was saying that because we elevated the road, the height of 
the road, that it was a taking of their property.  We settled -- we went to 
court on that and actually prevailed, but they filed an appeal and were going 
through the process of the appeal when we had a settlement conference with 
them.  And we did have some negotiations in that and reached a settlement 
which I will present to the Board of Examiners tomorrow, along with 
Karissa Vero from the AG’s Office (inaudible) that assisted us on that issue.  
And that concludes the Director’s Report. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Any questions from Board members for the Director? 

Fransway: Governor? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

6 

Sandoval: Yes, Tom. 

Fransway: Yes, Governor.  I do have some questions, but I think that they can wait 
until our fourth Agenda item. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Frank, are you present in Las Vegas? 

Martin: Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: All right.  Is the Attorney General present?  No?  Oh, yeah, there she is. 

Cortez Masto: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  Good morning.  We didn’t have you on our screen, so I’m glad 
you’re here.  All right.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 2, public 
comment.  Is there any member of the public here in Carson City that would 
like to present comment to the Board?  Is there anybody present in Las 
Vegas that would like to provide public comment to the Board? 

Martin: None here, sir. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you.  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 3, approval of 
February 11, 2013 Board minutes.  Have all the members had an 
opportunity to review the minutes, and are there any changes? 

Savage: Yes, Governor, I have, and I do have one change.  On Page 8, second 
paragraph it said “the Seymour Project.”   It should reflect the CMAR -- the 
acronym CMAR, Construction Management at Risk, for the Carlin Tunnel.  
That’s the only correction I have, Governor.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any other changes? 

Martin: I had one question.  On Page 41, I believe it is, Rudy had made the 
statement about following up on projections -- let’s see of his -- it starts on 
Page 40.  “Governor, this is Kim.  Just a follow up question.  I think it was 
the November Board meeting, maybe October, I had asked Cole to get us a 
chart, when we settled one piece of property in Las Vegas that basically 
doubled value in a year.  I said you can go back and tell us what you had 
estimated to settle it just so we can get a comfort level that our projections 
on these right-of-ways are going to come in with what we’re estimating.”  
And Rudy had made the statement that they would follow up on that this 
next month, and I didn’t see it on the Agenda.  So I’m wondering if that’s 
going to be followed up on. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  In response to Member Martin’s question, our anticipated 
process would be that we would have more thorough presentations to the 
Board on NEON on a quarterly basis, so we’ll cover that item at that time.  
It would be -- next month would be the month where we actually have a 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

7 

more detailed presentation on NEON’s status and we’ll cover that item at 
that time. 

Martin: Thank you. 

Krolicki: Governor, I’d move for approval with the one edit on Page 8 that Member 
Savage pointed out, it’s CMAR instead of Seymour. 

Fransway: Second. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  We have a motion by the Lieutenant Governor for approval of 
the minutes with a change as referenced by Member Savage on Page 8, 
second by Member Fransway.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda 
Item No. 4, approval of agreements over $300,000. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  Scott Sisco, 
for the record, Assistant Director over Administration.  Item No. 4 are 
approval of agreements over $300,000.  Moving to Page 3 of 28, we have 
four agreements this month for your approval.  The first agreement is from 
Volt Delta Resources.  That particular agreement is to operate and maintain 
Nevada’s 511 system in the amount of $1,920,000.  The second agreement 
is -- and by the way, these first three are all new agreements, and the last 
one is an amendment, and the second one is from Nossaman, LLP.  It’s legal 
advisory for Project NEON, which the Director mentioned.  And the third 
one is the financial advisory for Project NEON with Ernst and Young.  
Nossaman was $1.4 million, Ernst and Young $1,397,957, and then the 
fourth agreement over $300,000 for your approval today, Samaritan 
Incorporated, with Freeway Service Patrol and amendment to cover the Las 
Vegas area as we get the final RFP out on the street.  I’m happy to answer 
any questions or at least get the right people up here to answer any 
questions. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  I’ll go to Member Fransway.  He had some questions, I 
understand. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  I hope that you don’t regret that.  But I did have time 
to -- some things caught my eye on this Agenda item.  Particularly the first 
one looks like it was a cost savings of $391,000, and I believe that had 
something to do with your leadership, Governor.  Appreciate that.  Question 
on two and three, and the Director talked about that earlier.  My first 
question is, are these amounts for the life of the agreement?  One agreement 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

8 

is for a four-year agreement, and Line Item 3 is for a year and a half plus.  
And they’re about the same amount. 

Sisco: Mr. Fransway, real quick, I’ll jump in here, and then if I don’t quite answer 
your questions, we’ll get some additional.  These two agreements, as you 
will recall when we gave you the various NEON presentations, these were 
the two that took us to get to that point with RFP, where we could actually 
get the RFP out on the street, evaluated, and get them out on the street.  The 
legal agreement goes a little bit longer than the other one.  We put extra time 
in there because that one’s going to take a lot longer.  It’ll probably actually 
be evaluated into the period in which we’re putting that contract together, 
whereas we hope the financial agreement will be finalized by the time that 
we are ready to actually put the contract out on the street.  So there’s a little 
bit of a time difference, but these are both real close to the 1.5 million 
estimate that we originally estimated it would take us to get that RFP out on 
the street on these two. 

Fransway: Okay.  And my question was will that be for the life of the agreement? 

Sisco: The life of this particular agreement.  Now, there may be additional scope of 
work as we go in and we evaluate the actual contract that we’re going to put 
together, and the actual work that we’re going to put together in that 
contract, but both of these, this is the total scope of work for getting that 
RFP out onto the street, and then getting them back in and getting the -- to 
the point of starting the contract preparation and negotiations. 

Fransway: So the likelihood of further amendments is not likely over a four-year 
period? 

Sisco: You know, I feel like I’m dancing around here, and I don’t mean to be.  For 
this particular scope of work, yes.  Again, this is pretty much Nevada or 
NDOT’s first public-private partnership that we’re putting out there.  We’ve 
taken and we’ve studied a lot what the other states have done in order to get 
that RFP on the street.  We feel, and I know Mr. Hoffman guaranteed you, 
but we feel -- I’m going to put that out there, Bill, before you guarantee 
something else.  We feel that this is what we need based on everything that 
we’ve watched these other states.  And fortunately we’re down far enough 
having watched other states do it where we feel this is good.  Again, though, 
you just don’t know.  We’re watching the changes that MAP-21 and some 
of these other things have done to the whole process.  But based on 
everything to get this RFP on the street, we feel there will not be 
amendments for this scope of work. 

Fransway: Okay.  And I am aware that over a four-year period there may be some 
issues that arise that may warrant an amendment, but I’m hoping that over 
that four-year period they won’t be substantial. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

9 

Sisco: Okay.  Well, I do want to remind you that in that last presentation where we 
put these out, we did indicate that there may be the possibility that we use 
either -- one or more of these as advisors as we negotiate agreement and 
move forward with the actual agreement.  But for this particular scope of 
work, to get that RFP on the street, we do not believe that there should be 
any additional amendments to this. 

Fransway: Thank you, Scott.  Thank you, Governor. 

Martin: I have a couple of questions too. 

Sandoval: Please proceed. 

Martin: And along those lines, Scott, about the amendments and so on, in my world 
of vertical construction with the State Public Works Department, there is a 
point when you reach a 10 percent of the original contract value where there 
is a trigger.  That trigger invokes certain requirements as far as going further 
with the contract.  In other words, you got a $1,400,000, so in my world, at 
$140,000 worth of amendments, there is a trigger that happens where there’s 
an audit and there’s a few other things.  Does that same kind of situation 
exist within DOT? 

Sisco: Mr. Hoffman, you want to jump in on that one? 

Hoffman: Good morning, Governor, Transportation Board members.  I’m not aware 
that we have anything like that at NDOT.  I’m not sure that there’s a trigger 
that starts audit processes or anything like that.  We can look into that 
certainly. 

Sisco: And, again, one of the things that I’ll remind you of is these two particular 
consultations agreements, they are strictly for putting together an RFP.  
Most of the additional work is going to come in negotiating that contract and 
moving forward from that contract beyond.  So we feel that the scope of 
work for these particular things, we shouldn’t see any cost overruns.  So we 
made it clear in the negotiations with these two consultants that Mr. 
Hoffman guaranteed that there weren’t going to be any. 

Martin: Okay.  I understand that part, but I echo Member Fransway’s concerns that 
one of the things that’s created some of the most discussion in some of the 
meetings I’ve attended is the consistent amendments to consultant’s 
agreements and which seem to be ongoing all the time.  And I have a 
concern because these are significant agreements, significant amounts of 
money, and on a significant project.  So I have a concern that that’s what 
we’re going to see here.  It’ll just be an ongoing situation amendment after 
amendment. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

10 

Sisco: One of the things we can do here as we had promised before is we can 
continuously monitor these and bring in the Director’s Report an update on 
where we’re at on these contracts as we move towards getting those RFPs 
out on the streets so that you’ll all know ahead of time if there’s anything 
coming.  But, again, we don’t believe that for this scope of work there 
should be, but we can make sure that we add that to the Agenda each month 
as we bring these RFPs out to the street. 

Martin: Okay.  And I don’t know if the rest of the Board feels a need to know on a 
quarterly basis, an update on where we are with these budgets, so that by 
knowing how much we billed and what the potential cost to complete is, 
that’s kind of the same -- I think Member Savage uses that same kind of 
report in his business, to anticipate where it’s going to come out in the end.  
So I don’t know if the rest of the Board -- that’s something maybe for 
another discussion.  On the Ernst and Young contract, where is that 
managed from, what office? 

Sisco: Their San Francisco office is their closest office where their expertise for the 
public-private partnerships is.  Now, they have one of their members, 
because they ended up having a last minute consultant change, is coming 
from New York, but we negotiated with them to make sure we weren’t 
going to pay any difference in their travel costs or their time costs from their 
San Francisco exchange out. 

Martin: Okay.  You asked -- you answered one question, because in the number here 
undoubtedly is travel and per diem, and I’m wondering how they could be 
even close in the financial side of it to a firm that’s located say in Las Vegas 
or -- well, not Las Vegas, but in Reno where it’s working directly with, or 
maybe in Las Vegas.  I know when I hire a subcontractor here locally that 
comes from Austin, Texas, there’s a huge difference in cost. 

Sisco: Yes.  And, again, they did include their travel costs in this.  And, again, for 
the expertise that we were looking for in putting together a public-private 
partnership RFP, that was pretty close for us for this particular -- in 
particular this financial advisor.  I think our -- I’m trying to remember where 
other competitors were from, and I think San Francisco was about as close 
as we were getting. 

Martin: Okay.  Who else proposed? 

Sisco: Our current -- our previous consultant which was KPMG and we had two 
others.  And I’m trying to remember… 

Hoffman: If I could, Scott? 

Sisco: Yes. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

11 

Hoffman: Bill Hoffman, for the record.  It was Claret was a financial advisor, KPMG 
and Ernst and Young were the three that interviewed.  And then if you guys 
want to know the legal advisors, those three that interviewed were 
Nossaman, Armstrong Teasdale and Ballard Spahr. 

Martin: Okay.  And on the legal side, where were the other two firms located?  
Obviously Nossaman is out of town as well, out of state. 

Hoffman: I’ll go ahead and answer that question.  Again, Bill Hoffman, for the record.  
It was interesting with both the legal and financial advisors in that they 
teamed up with P3 experts from across the country.  They tried as much as 
they could to tie themselves into Las Vegas or Reno offices, but for the most 
part, those that held the most experience and most expertise were from 
outside of the State of Nevada.  We had Philadelphia, New York, San 
Francisco, Los Angeles.  They were -- those experts that we felt we needed 
did not have local presence in Nevada. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: I have a question on that legal.  Are we going to be paying, or was it 
negotiated, are we going to be paying 500 bucks on hour for lawyers to be 
flying on airplanes and things of that nature? 

Hoffman: Bill Hoffman.  We want to try to minimize that as much as we can.  There 
were some very good, I believe, negotiations made.  Travel costs, there were 
other things that we tried to take into consideration to reduce the overall cost 
of their services, but I think, unfortunately, we’re going -- in some instances 
we’ll be paying those hourly rates for them to travel. 

Sandoval: And who is going to be responsible for reviewing the timesheets and the 
billings for this firm? 

Hoffman: That’ll be the responsibility of the project team.  I don’t want to promise 
anything for Dennis, but I’m sure that our AG’s Office would like to get a 
look at those.  And we have a project manager that will be looking -- that’s 
their sole purpose is to look for scope, schedule and budget.  And certainly 
the consultant services, that’s their job is to look over those costs every time 
those invoices come in.  So it’ll be a joint effort between those experts, the 
legal experts.  Dave Olsen in our financial management group will also be 
involved, but it’ll be the project manager’s sole purpose to look over those 
and make sure that the costs that have been billed are those costs actually 
incurred. 

Sandoval: And what is the hourly rate?  I just threw out 500, but I’m curious.  Do you 
know? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

12 

Hoffman: I wouldn’t want to say without having the detail behind that.  I’m not quite 
sure what those costs are. 

Malfabon: This is Rudy Malfabon.  It was noted that they had negotiated a five percent 
reduction in the hourly rates, but I don’t know what the actual rate was. 

Sandoval: Five percent of what? 

Malfabon: Yeah.  Lou?  Lou Holland from the AG’s Office. 

Holland: Governor and members of the Board, the rates for the Nossaman firm vary 
depending upon the particular attorney involved.  Corey Boock will be one 
of the primary attorneys involved.  His rate is $605 an hour.  We have other 
attorneys at lesser rates.  There’s Geoff Petrov out of Houston who 
occasionally supports the effort.  He’s at about $450 an hour.  So there’s a 
range. 

Sandoval: But I -- yeah, and I don’t know -- I haven’t had an opportunity to look at the 
scope of work, but if this is advisory in nature and not appearance in nature, 
I would imagine it wouldn’t be necessary for them to travel to Nevada very 
often. 

Holland: That’s true.  We try to minimize their travel as much as we can.  We do a lot 
of telephone conferences when necessary.  And, you know, there are times 
that we have them here to do training our folks, those kind of things, NDOT 
staff.  They do some training and some risk management type meetings.  We 
get together for those.  But we try to minimize travel.  Everybody’s very 
conscious about the budget constraints that we have here in the State. 

Sandoval: And I think you can appreciate that this is going to be watched very closely 
with regard to these contracts.  And, again, I share the sentiment of some of 
the other Board members as we approve these now and they’re four years, 
and then two or three years down the road we start to see the amendments, 
and this is a lot of money.  And I understand that we have to get the best 
attorneys out there.  I obviously have -- would like to see Nevada firms get 
the work.  But if in the judgment of the committee that reviewed this that the 
Nevada firms didn’t have the expertise like this Nossaman firm did, again, 
I’m not going to interfere with that, but at the same time, we have to 
consider the travel, these expenses and those things. 

But I think I agree with Member Martin.  I would, I guess, take it at face 
value today that we’re going to have a quarterly update as to where we are 
on these things.  I think the suggestion of Member Martin in terms of how 
we monitor them was an excellent one as well.  But I just -- I guess it’s one 
of those things, at least in my little over two years on the Board, we’ve seen 
this happen quite a bit where we have an amount of money and then we start 
to have these extensive amendments, particularly in the legal area.  And we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

13 

just want to make sure that we stay within the boundaries of the original 
agreement. 

Holland: Governor, Lou Holland once again.  One of the things that we have done is 
create a very close budgeting of the legal firms that we watch, I personally 
watch, where we monitor the expenses versus the budget.  We have broken 
out the budget in particular tasks off the scope of work.  We track each of 
those to find out how we’re doing on a month-to-month basis as we get 
invoices in, and closely monitor it. 

Also to add onto something that Bill Hoffman said a while ago, the 
Armstrong Teasdale firm had one attorney with P3 experience.  He was 
based -- I take that back.  Armstong Teasdale had two attorneys based in St. 
Louis that had P3 experience, and Ballard Spahr had one attorney based in 
Philadelphia with P3 experience.  So we’re looking at outside the State for 
P3 experience in all of the firms that were interviewed. 

Sandoval: And then just, you know, I’m sure -- I don’t know if it’s going to be you, 
Mr. Holland, or whoever, but just make sure that we don’t have one partner, 
three associates and two paralegals all billing on the same meeting and 
doing the same things. 

Holland: We watch that very closely, Governor. 

Martin: I have one more question.  How many trips was actually anticipated for 
someone in the 600 or even the $450 range to come to Reno and/or Las 
Vegas? 

Holland: This is Lou Holland once again.  I’m not sure of that number.  Perhaps 
someone from project management might know that. 

Martin: And the reason that I ask -- and a little bit later we’re going to be asked to 
approve an amendment to an existing contract because quote/unquote, 
“There were more site visits required than was anticipated.”  And I can see 
that maybe following forward.  So I was just wondering what -- if it was 
established how many site visits was within the $1.4 million. 

Malfabon: Rudy Malfabon.  In response, Governor and Board members, in task four of 
the backup on page 20 of 28, it says that there were anticipated to be two 
meetings per month in the first three months, and then one per month for in 
person key meetings.  So we would try to get the key individual or 
individuals from those firms typically at the -- this is on the financial side, 
but I’m assuming that it’s the same team meetings with the legal side.  And 
so initially we’ll have more frequent meetings, but then we’ll try to -- once 
everybody’s up to speed on the project team on the NDOT side with the 
outside advisors, we’ll try to concentrate on a more cost effective 
teleconferences or video conferences. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

14 

Martin: That page 20 of 28 was for Ernst and Young, Rudy. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Martin: And I was asking about the attorney because I’m assuming that the 
accountant side isn’t $600 an hour. 

Malfabon: In response to Member Martin, it would be the same meetings, the same 
team meetings typically for the -- because we’re going to get the NDOT 
team together will be a larger group, and we’ll get the financial and legal 
folks and technical folks present at those same team meetings, Frank. 

Martin: Okay. 

Sisco: And, again, just confirming with the project managers, yeah, we’re looking 
at the same things.  Similar at the beginning, but we hope to -- again, both of 
the teams have very senior level people with their companies in them that 
will be involved in the very beginning, and be weaned off as their project 
management from their side takes over and we start dealing with the lower 
level employees, if you will. 

Malfabon: And we will commit to the quarterly updates, the first one being next month, 
where the project manager, Cole Mortensen, will give more detailed 
information as far as status of right-of-way acquisition, budget and the legal 
and financial services contracts. 

Sandoval: Board members, any further questions with regard to Agenda Item 3?  
Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Before we (inaudible) if I could address Line Item 4.  And a lot of this may 
be resolved in just clarification, but for this particular amendment, it appears 
to me that the 801,000 for Samaratania is relative to District 1.  Now, their 
whole contract is for District 1 and District 2, I would assume. 

Malfabon: No.  I’ll respond to that, Member Fransway.  That contract is for District 1 
because we put out an RFP for both districts separately.  And it’s a good 
point to make is that Rick Nelson had the Freeway Service Patrol vehicle 
that we’re going to self-perform for three months or so -- is it three months?  
It’s actually parked downstairs, so if the Board members… 

Sandoval: Yeah, I saw that. 

Malfabon: …on the way in and the way out could, you know, take a look at that 
vehicle.  But our intention is have this amendment cover that lag in time 
between getting the new vendor onboard for Freeway Service Patrol 
services in District 1 in Las Vegas, and in the meantime for that lag in 
District 2, we’re going to self-perform the service and see how we compare 
with the vendor that responds to the RFP for District 2. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

15 

Fransway: Okay.  So far it looks to me like we’re into this $9,000,558.  Now, is that 
District 1 only? 

Malfabon: I believe they were separate contracts, so District 1 -- is that correct, Rick?  
On the amendment, these were usually separate contracts with Samaratania. 
Okay.  Rick Nelson. 

Inda: Good morning.  Denise Inda, Traffic Operations.  We have to clarify 
Member Fransway’s question.  Currently we have one agreement for the 
entire Freeway Service Patrol program in the State.  A portion of the service 
in Las Vegas, a portion of the service in Reno.  So that nine and a half 
million dollar total is for all of the service throughout the State.  We’re only 
adding additional funds on for Las Vegas to keep service through the new -- 
or the successful firm that will be providing the FSP service in the future. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you for that, but the way I see the whole service is that it was 
authorized to commence in September of 2007 at a cost of 5.7 million plus.  
And that was for a four-year period, which equals about 1.4 million per 
year.  Now, over the last two years there’s been four amendments and 
they’ve averaged about 2 million per year.  And so that’s 600,000 more.  
And I’m just trying to figure that out.  Because if you look at the CPI, that’s 
way high. 

Inda: Part of the reason the costs have -- say the cost per month, if you will, has 
increased is not because they’re charging us more.  They’re still charging us 
the same hourly rate as when we first initiated the agreement.  But what we 
have done over the years is we’ve changed the hours and the routes of the 
service, particularly in Las Vegas.  So the coverage, if you will, has 
expanded, and that’s what’s costing more money. 

In this last amendment for Las Vegas, as Member Savage is well aware of, 
because we’ve been talking to him in great detail about our program, we 
have actually refined the routes and the hours.  We did investigation based 
on crash data, on traffic volumes, so the routes have slightly shrunk in Las 
Vegas, because we really want to make sure that we’re getting the most 
response for that service, that, you know, we’re putting it in the most -- the 
more highly congested areas where it’s going to make the biggest 
difference, and reduce congestion, improve reliability, those sorts of things. 

So that’s why the cost seems to have gone up.  It’s because our routes 
expanded.  But we’ve actually trimmed that back slightly.  But we do have -
- for example, we do have more vans in the program than we did originally 
in 2007. 

Fransway: Okay.  So in your view then the expanded routes are seeing positive results? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

16 

Inda: Yes and no.  We had expanded those routes in the past with significant input 
from the Highway Patrol.  And what we have done is we’ve actually looked 
at the numbers and we’ve tweaked those routes slightly.  So we are 
contracting the routes a little bit in Las Vegas, because even though 
Highway Patrol and, you know, most everyone would like us to have service 
on every road 24/7, we know that we don’t have the money to provide that 
service, and that there’s not the same benefit 24/7 everywhere.  So we’ve 
contracted the routes and adjusted them to where we think that the public is 
going to receive the most benefit -- the most value. 

Fransway: Okay.  So hopefully NEON will fix that. 

Inda: NEON is a capacity project and it will provide additional capacity in the 
area.  And as we are doing now, and we will do every time a project goes 
through, we do evaluate what the needs are in that area, and we can and will 
adjust the routes and the hours accordingly.  We certainly will do that. 

Malfabon: Just to add to Member Fransway’s comment.  Project NEON will definitely 
improve the flow of traffic in that area on I-15, but we will still need 
Freeway Service Patrol services, because the same drivers kind of cruise the 
entire network, so they go on all the major freeways during the peak time 
that we have them contracted out to provide that service. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Just a couple comments on Item No. 4, and a couple 
questions, because I do, again, thank Mr. Nelson and Ms. Inda for stopping 
by the office almost on a monthly basis to update myself on FSP concerns.  
And I think it’s a great opportunity for this pilot program up here in the 
north.  We’ve asked for substantiation documents from the current provider 
for some months and weeks worked over this past year.  But, Mr. Nelson, if 
you could please update us on the pilot program to begin here April 1 in the 
northern section of the State, number one.  And number two, the question on 
Page 26 of 28, the comment, “cannot go on a federal fiscal year cycle per 
April,” if you could answer those two questions for me, I’d appreciate that. 

Nelson: For the record, Rick Nelson, Assistant Director of Operations.  As to the 
update, the proposals have been received from those firms competing for the 
Freeway Service Patrol program both north and south, and they’re being 
evaluated right now.  We anticipate bringing a recommendation to the Board 
for approval to the August Board meeting. 

So the pilot program for the Freeway Service Patrol will provide coverage in 
the Reno/Sparks area from the time the agreement expires at the end of 
March through when the successful vendor -- when that contract is 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

17 

approved, if we choose to approve it.  So really we’re looking at about a six-
month pilot program to get us towards the end of September.  And this 
amendment, in fact, will expire at the end of September.  So we need to 
know what we’re going to do by then. 

We scheduled a mid-period evaluation of our pilot program where we’re 
self-performing the Freeway Service Patrol duties in the Reno area.  So we 
want to follow that closely to see how much it’s costing us per assist, and 
how much the program is benefiting the region.  So that’s really where we 
stand. 

And as Director Malfabon mentioned, one of the Freeway Service Patrol 
trucks that we plan to use to self-perform this service in Reno is parked out 
front.  We’ll have an operator there at the end of Board meeting who can 
open up the doors and you can see the kind of equipment and gear that is 
typically contained there.  For your second question, Member Savage, on 
Page 28, I think I lost you on that one.  Where are we at? 

Savage: There’s a comment at the bottom, if you could explain that.  It was a 
handwritten comment, “cannot go on federal fiscal year cycle.” 

Inda: Denise Inda, Traffic Operations.  That was a comment made by April Pogue 
in our financial management section.  We’ve worked that through with her.  
Essentially she is making -- it’s an issue that deals with bookkeeping and 
accounting.  Because FSP utilizes federal funds, their office would have a 
problem if we had this agreement go into effect during the month where 
they’re closing out the federal fiscal year.  And so we’ve verified with their 
office that this agreement will be awarded prior to that, and the agreement 
will be in effect prior to the closing of the federal fiscal year.  So there’s not 
an issue on their part at all.  And then the work will be able to commence 
once the contractor is up and running and mobilized for the next service.  So 
it was just kind of an internal bookkeeping comment that we’ve verified that 
there’s not an issue and no problems with. 

Savage: And what’s the federal fiscal year? 

Inda: The federal fiscal year ends September 30.  And so they have accounting 
and working through between the Department and the FHWA.  And it’s a 
very busy time for that office and they wanted to make sure that the money 
could properly be allocated. 

Savage: Right. 

Fransway: Question. 

Sandoval: Member Savage, do you have any more questions? 

Savage: I’m fine, thank you, Governor. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

18 

Sandoval: Okay.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: So -- thank you, Governor.  So the last sentence of the first paragraph on 
Page 26 then is referring to federal fiscal year, not state fiscal year.  Okay. 

Inda: Yes, that’s accurate. 

Fransway: Okay.  Now I got it. 

Sandoval: I actually have -- I think I -- you may have answered this question, Mr. 
Nelson, but this isn’t 100 percent federal funded program, correct? 

Nelson: That is correct. 

Sandoval: And so the State pays for five percent of it? 

Nelson: That’s correct. 

Sandoval: And then that federal money, is it specified only for this purpose, or is this 
money that could be spent on other things? 

Nelson: No, it’s (inaudible) mitigation -- no?  Oh, you better come up, Denise. 

Inda: Denise Inda.  The funding is federal funding, and it’s NHS funding, and so 
there are a variety of uses for this kind of money.  And the Department over 
the years has determined that this is how it will be spent. 

Sandoval: So what would be other alternatives for how we would spend this money? 

Malfabon: In response, Governor and Board members, the NHS money goes to the 
National Highway System.  That’s the old category.  Now it’s called the 
National Highway Performance Program.  But it’s primarily the major 
routes, so interstate U.S. highways that carry a lot of the traffic. 

Sandoval; So this, for example, and I’m not suggesting or referring to anything, but 
this $10 million could have been spent perhaps on a construction project? 

Nelson: Rick Nelson, for the record.  That’s correct. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Thank you.  Any further questions from Board members?  And we 
won’t have any more amendments for more money? 

Male: Mr. Hoffman’s guarantee. 

Malfabon: Our guaranteer. 

Nelson: We believe that through the series of amendments that’s taken place and the 
attempts to solicit an RFP, that we think we’ve got the kinks worked out of 
this, and we have every faith that this will be the last amendment for this 
current contract. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

19 

Sandoval: Yeah, I don’t think the next one will go real well.  All right.  If there are 
no -- do you have any further presentation, Mr. Sisco? 

Sisco: No.  Just the Director recommends approval of all items under Item No. 4. 

Sandoval: So if there are no further questions, the Chair will accept a motion for 
approval of agreements over $300,000 as described in Agenda Item No. 4. 

Savage: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: We have a motion for approval by Member Savage.  Is there a second? 

Fransway: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Fransway.  Are there any questions or discussion on the 
motion?  If there are none, all in favor of the motion, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda 
Item No. 5, contracts, agreements and settlements. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Governor, today we have three items under this.  We have 
contracts under $5 million that have been awarded, we have agreements 
under $300,000 executed between January 19 and February 15, and we have 
one settlement entered by the Department which was presented to the Board 
of Examiners.  Moving to Page 4 of 11, we have the two contracts awarded 
under 500,000.  We have Contract No. 810-12 which was an HVAC system 
for the lab building and equipment shop at the Las Vegas Maintenance 
Station in Clark County.  The engineer’s estimate was $760,062, and the 
Director awarded the contract January 23 to U.S. Mechanical LLC in the 
amount of $802,700.  Upon approval from (inaudible) we will enter into 
contract with the firm. 

Item No. 2 is Contract Number 814-12.  The project is for the tenant 
improvements for the newly constructed Roop Street annex building out 
here behind our complex.  Engineer’s estimate was $1,480,100.  The 
Director awarded the contract on February 5, 2013 to Sheehan Beauchamp 
Builders in the amount of $1,147,500.  And again, upon approval of bond 
from the contractors, the State will enter into the contract with the firm.  
Those are the two contracts that we’ve awarded under $5 million. 

 If no questions, I’ll move on to the next item which is Attachment B which 
is contract amendments and settlements under $300,000.  I do not believe 
we’ve identified any that we need to jump out at, so we’ll just kind of jump 
right into your questions on those. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

20 

Martin: I have one on Number 5. 

Sandoval: Please proceed. 

Martin: Here, again, it’s an amendment to increase engineering fees from 2.7 million 
to 2.9 million, round numbers.  And I’m just kind of not understanding why 
these amendments keep flowing through, specifically on engineering costs.  
So I just need a little bit of explanation on -- I mean, this was relocation of 
existing facilities.  You walk out, take a look at the existing facilities, it goes 
from Point A to Point B.  Engineering costs ought to be fairly simple, and 
yet we still are facing an amendment for $150,000. 

Malfabon: And in response, Governor, I’ll try to do that, and John Terry is available 
also.  This is Rudy Malfabon.  In the Boulder City Bypass Project, we 
typically enter in with a utility company to cover their expenses including 
engineering costs of -- these ones are for Western Area Power, WAPA, so 
they have significant towers, structural steel towers to design.  And when we 
enter into our agreement, they do their best to estimate it, but then as they 
get more defined in the actual costs of engineering, that comes into play.  So 
I think that’s what occurred in this case.  And I don’t know if John has 
anything to add to that, but it’s typically where we have an agreement that 
says that we’ll pay the actual costs for the relocation, including the 
engineering costs.  And I guess the additional engineering expense is just 
related to the design of those steel towers for -- there are a significant 
number of towers that some are new and some are just relocating existing 
towers.  Mr. Terry? 

Sandoval: Does that satisfy your question, Member Martin? 

Martin: Yeah, I think basically what Rudy is saying in a roundabout way is that it’s 
the federal government telling us how much money we’ve got to pay them. 

Malfabon: It is the federal -- WAPA is a federal, so -- but typically since our agreement 
says actual cost, we’re open to pay what their expenses are. 

Terry: John Terry, Assistant Director of Engineering.  I mean, in this case, this is, 
yes, the federal government or a major utility.  We enter into an agreement.  
Frankly, we enter into those utility agreements for that engineering cost 
pretty early in the process so we can cover their engineering costs, and as 
those actual costs of actual engineering develop, we process amendments so 
they can continue to do the design. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: And just to add for Member Martin and the Board, we do enter into these 
agreements to cover engineering expenses so they can get on it right away, 
start their design and be assured that they’re going to receive 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

21 

reimbursement.  Obviously at some point when the design is done, then they 
start their acquisition of the materials for the relocation expenses.  But it is a 
method that we use to try to save time is to get that agreement first and 
assure them that we’re doing to reimburse them and then they do their work 
to relocate. 

Martin: It’s a good deal.  How would you like one like that, Member Savage? 

Savage: No comment. 

Sandoval: Are there any further questions with -- or do you still have more 
presentation? 

Sisco: No. 

Savage: Just let it go. 

Sisco: Yeah, let it go. 

Sandoval: If you want to keep going -- no? 

Sisco: I know when to stop. 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item No. 
5?  We’ll move on to… 

Martin: I have one more. 

Sandoval: Oh, all right.  Member Martin. 

Sisco: And there is a settlement also, an Item C on that. 

Martin: On Item No. 27, G.C. Wallace, there’s an amendment.  Is this contract for 
both architectural and civil services, or just civil services? 

Sisco: Mr. Terry? 

Terry: John Terry again.  And the short answer, it is both. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: And with respect to the settlement in Attachment C, that was previously 
approved by the Board of Examiners, and it had to do with an unfortunate 
event involving one of our drivers that resulted in some fatalities on two 
people. 

Sandoval: Any questions, Board members, with regard to the settlement?  Truly a 
tragedy.  All right then.  Mr. Sisco, anything else? 

Sisco: No, that’s it for Item No. 5. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

22 

Sandoval: All right.  Then we’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 6, resolution requesting 
the State Board of Finance to issue highway revenue refunding bonds. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Again, for the record, Scott Sisco, Assistant Director over 
Administration.  We get to do something fun here, save a little money 
instead of spend some.  With me today is Dave Olson, our Chief 
Accountant, and also Lori Chatwood from the State Treasurer’s Office, and 
in the Las Vegas office is Marty Johnson, NDOT’s financial advisor in case 
any of the Board members have questions for them.  Item No. 6 is a request 
for a resolution to be signed by the Chairman of the Board to be forwarded 
to the State Board of Finance requesting an issuance of highway refunding 
bonds of the State of Nevada. 

As you will recall, we appeared before you approximately one year ago and 
refinanced a 2004 series bond resulting in an overall savings to the Highway 
Fund in the amount of $5,701,393.  In working with the State Treasurer’s 
Office, an opportunity has once again been identified to refund some of our 
outstanding 2005 and 2006 series bonds resulting in savings to future bond 
payments of about $7 million.  If authorized, bonds will be sold by the State 
Treasurer with the proceeds put into an escrow account.  The escrow 
account will then make the required interest payments on the bonds.  And 
then on or about December 1, 2016, the payments that would have been 
made in the years 2017 to 2020 totaling $65,130 will be made out of escrow 
account for the 2005 series bonds.  And then on or about December 1, 2017, 
the payments that would have been made in the years 2019 through 2023, 
totaling $58,340,000 will be made out of escrow account for the 2006 series 
bonds. 

The reason for placing the funds in escrow and paying the bonds off at this 
particular time is due to the conveyance on those particular bonds 
preventing their early payoff prior to December of 2015 for the series 2005 
bonds, and December of 2016 for the series 2006 bonds.  The difference 
between the proceeds of approximately 143 million and 123 million bonds 
to be paid off is interest on the original bonds for the period of time between 
the refunding transaction and the bonds -- and when the bonds are refunded 
and the costs of the bonds refunding transaction.  The anticipated net result 
of this transaction in dropping our current interest rate of 4.7 percent down 
to approximately 1.89 percent, again, resulting in an estimated overall 
savings to Nevada taxpayers of approximately $7 million.  Ultimately, the 
actual savings will be dependent upon the interest rate on the day of the 
actual bond sale, as well as final costs associated with processing the 
transaction. 

We should note we are still examining the benefits of adding or subtracting 
maturities to this transaction.  We may refund additional maturities if the 
rates drop, or subtract maturities if the rates increase.  We will continue to 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

23 

monitor the interest rates, and ultimately the actual savings will be 
dependent upon the rates on the day of the bond sales.  The most recent 
analysis as of last Friday is showing slightly more savings than the analysis 
that is included in your bond package.  I believe you’re showing 7.1, and as 
of Friday it was 7.9 million in potential savings. 

There are two notable risks associated with such a transaction.  First, similar 
to the risk any of us might face in locking in interest rates as part of a 
mortgage process, is the possibility that the rates change shortly afterwards, 
leaving one wishing they had waited longer or locked in earlier.  But, again, 
we’re looking at dropping the interest rates we’re paying at 4.7 percent 
down to approximately 1.89 percent.  It’s hard to have too much buyer’s 
remorse.  The second, and although more costly risk, but also less likely, is 
the possibility that the conditions changed so substantially the interests rates 
we will ultimately pay, that the transaction becomes no longer cost effective.  
Should that occur after the bond rating companies have completed their 
work and the sale must be postponed or canceled, the costs incurred up to 
that point are estimated to be approximately $100,000, a cost that would be 
the responsibility of the Department. 

Ultimately the Department, the State Treasurer’s Office and the State’s 
financial advisor feel that this transaction is in the best interests of the State 
of Nevada, and subsequently the State taxpayers.  Further, the Department 
will continue to seek out such opportunities for our 2008 series bonds, and 
as marketing conditions provide any similar opportunities, we anticipate 
bringing those requests forward in the future.  The Department requests that 
the Board authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution found under Tab 6 
authorizing the refunding of the highway bonds as described.  And we’ll be 
happy to answer any questions at this time.  And we did provide the 
preliminary official statement to the State Treasurer, or former State 
Treasurer, and only a former State Treasurer would ever want to read that 
thing, but you’re all welcome to a copy if you’d like. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Sisco.  And the Lieutenant Governor does have questions.  
Please proceed. 

Krolicki: Just because I feel paternity on this, because I think I issued these bonds 
with Lori once upon a time.  Thank you for the preliminary official 
statement, Scott, and, you know, I’m not sure if we’ll have opportunity 
under my watch to do this again, but I would appreciate in the future doing 
this.  And I understand the sequence is very tight, this just came out on 
Friday, you’ve got a Board of Finance meeting tomorrow, but it would be 
nice to have that, if possible. 

A couple questions if I may, and Scott, you sound like a financial advisor, 
but maybe Lori or Marty Johnson or Dave would like to answer some of 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

24 

these things.  Certainly with the risks, you know, I had an old boss who told 
me you never lose money taking a profit, so I will take that first risk of 
being even a better refunding opportunity off the table.  The rating agencies, 
I don’t recall that being a standard risk.  I mean, it’s almost a contingency 
fee if we issue.  I believe they rated these bonds -- we did a refunding last 
year and some of this data should be fresh.  Some of the issues, since they’re 
not GO bonds, they’re just revenue bonds, you know, the federal 
government risk should be clear, so I’m not quite sure, and I think the State 
issued bonds recently, so why are we paying -- it just seems a little high for 
me on the rating agency costs.  Lori? 

Chatwood: Thank you.  Lori Chatwood, Deputy Treasurer for the State Treasurer’s 
Office.  The rating agencies, as you’re aware, rate each bond issue that we 
take out.  We have not been before them for the revenue bonds for a year 
since we refunded prior.  If they go and issue a rating for us, we may have to 
pay those fees, if it does not result in an actual bond issuance.  However, I 
would have to defer to Marty, but I believe we would have at least six 
months that that rating would be good.  So if we only delayed the bond 
issuance, we would not be paying that again.  However, if we totally 
canceled the bond issuance because the markets did not hold out, we may 
have to pay their fee.  It’s also based on the par amount.  So we have asked 
in this resolution up to 200 million in bonds to be refunded to give us the 
flexibility as the markets may improve, that we could put additional 
maturities on that would best refund at this time.  So it’s a matter of the par 
that’s actually issued and the timing of which the bond issuance actually 
takes place. 

Krolicki: And, Lori, it’s a pleasure to hear you and see you doing this, but there is an 
extent, there’s a window that these ratings would be good for, so, again, I 
think the risk is mitigated.  Lori, don’t go far away.  Scott, you mentioned 
that additional bonds may be tossed into the sale, and that was my question.  
If we look at what’s outstanding, we’ve got the Series 2004 and 5 
outstanding.  Those coupons don’t make at this point to put them in the 
refunding? 

Chatwood: Correct.  The efficiencies are not there presently.  In some of our larger 
scenarios that we have run, some of the 16 and the 17 -- the 16 on the 2005 
and the 17 on the 2006 for another approximately $20 million or so could 
make sense.  The efficiencies -- we have opportunity in the future to 
advance refund those possibly for savings.  So by doing them now, I believe 
they’re in the three percent range or some… 

Krolicki: And that was the question, so -- and just for the Board, it’s always been 
about five percent. 

Chatwood: Correct. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

25 

Krolicki: So certainly these bonds more than qualify, but thank you for sharing that.  
So they are a bit off to be right. 

Chatwood: And, again, it depends if the market moved in our favor and we saw it 
reduce by, you know, five or ten basis points, they may be back in.  But 
currently they are not. 

Krolicki: And the advanced refunding, the defeasance will be done in escrow with 
slugs? 

Chatwood: As long as the window is open, which is currently is, yes. 

Krolicki: Okay.  Thank you.  That’s all my questions, Governor.  It’s fun to play State 
Treasurer every once in a while.  These are my babies.  I’m sending them 
out of the house now. 

Sandoval Any further questions from Board members?  Any further presentation, Mr. 
Sisco? 

Sisco: No, no, Governor.  Again, the Director recommends that you approve the 
resolution and we have the resolution here for you to sign. 

Sandoval: Given that, the Chair will accept a motion to approve the resolution as 
described in Attachment C in Agenda Item No. 6, and also authorize the 
Chairman of the Board to sign the resolution. 

Krolicki: Governor, if I may, I would like to move that the resolution be approved and 
the Governor be authorized as Chairman to sign the resolution. 

Sandoval: We have a motion by the Lieutenant Governor.  Is there a second? 

Fransway: Second, Governor. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Fransway.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Thank you very much. 

Sisco: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Agenda Item No. 7, condemnation resolution. 

Malfabon: Governor, previously on the I-15 South design-build project we required a 
condemnation action on this Wykoff property.  It’s located along Warm 
Springs and it was for the purpose of utility relocations along Warm 
Springs, the power line, and also a communications company.  In looking at 
the property, we realized that we needed an additional approximately a little 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

26 

bit less than two feet additional width of easement, so that’s why we’re 
asking for an amendment to the condemnation resolution. 

Sandoval: Board members, any questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 7?  If there 
are none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of the condemnation 
resolution as described therein. 

Fransway: Question, Governor. 

Sandoval: Okay.  We have a question from Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Rudy, the State has revised their initial offer upwards.  Has there been any 
movement on the other side at this time? 

Malfabon: I believe that we anticipate that we might have to go to court on this one.  I 
don’t know if Paul has anything to add, but we feel that there are some other 
issues involved.  The owner was substantially higher, I thought, they were in 
the several millions of dollars range.  Paul Saucedo from Right-of-Way. 

Saucedo: Governor, Members of the Board.  Yeah, there’s been a counter-offer 
presented that’s significantly higher than what our original offer was, and I 
know there’s been discussions back and forth with legal counsel, but we 
remain, at this point, real far apart.  It’s not looking real good at this time. 

Malfabon: Now we think that we’ll have to go to court on this one. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  Is there a member who’s willing to make a motion 
for approval? 

Savage: I’ll make a motion to approve, Governor. 

Sandoval: Motion for approval by Member Savage.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Martin.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 8, old 
business. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  The standing items that we present on a regular 
basis, the outside counsel costs report.  I wanted to note that we are 
spreading the work around with local firms -- local legal firms, and I think a 
blessing and a curse.  We need a lot of legal support for some of these 
significant issues that we’re facing.  We did also have to present the Board 
with an actual hard copy because the reproduction cut off.  It cut off part of 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

27 

the information, so we gave you a handout.  Hopefully the Board members 
in Las Vegas have received that handout for outside counsel contracts.  
Any… 

Martin: We have. 

Malfabon: Any questions, Dennis Gallagher from Attorney General’s Office is here to 
respond to them. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members? 

Martin: I only had one.  Most of these cases seem to be the right-of-ways, and a lot 
of them have to do with Project NEON.  I only find three with disputes with 
contractors, and it’s Primary Peak and Williams Brothers.  But when I go to 
another report, there seems to be more disputes than just those.  You have 
two disputes with Peak and one with Williams Brothers, and they’re not on 
this listing.  Why is that?  Or has counsel not been hired for the others? 

Gallagher:  For the record, Dennis Gallagher from the Attorney General’s Office.  
Board Member Martin, the Peak and Williams Brothers are reflected on the 
outside counsel contracts.  We’ve retained the firm of Snell and Wilmer to 
assist on those. 

Martin: Right. 

Gallagher: And then any other construction claims we have not yet retained outside 
counsel, and may or may not depending on the amount of the claim and/or 
the complexity of the claim. 

Martin: Okay.  So the -- because I think Meadow Valley has one pending, and then 
the people that’s doing the Meadowood Mall thing have got one pending.  
So you’ve not retained outside counsel at all on those two? 

Gallagher: That is correct, Board Member. 

Martin: Okay.  And you didn’t retain outside counsel on Capriotti? 

Gallagher: We have not. 

Martin: Okay.  But Rudy, one point of clarification, or Rick, I think Capriotti settled 
out, right, 100 percent? 

Malfabon: In response, Capriotti is the contractor working on Contract 3409, which is 
the U.S. 95 widening from around the Rainbow Curve there up to Ann Road 
and a little bit beyond there.  They submitted a request for 3.8 million 
approximately.  It had to do with the drilled shafts.  The request was 
escalated at headquarters, but we resolved that portion.  So the lion’s share 
of Capriotti’s issues were dealt with and a change order will be processed 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

28 

for that.  But there was a portion that was denied (inaudible).  It was about 
an $112,000 issue and we’re presenting that to a Contract Claims Review 
Board. 

There was also another issue that’s pending, Member Martin.  It has to do 
with electrical work.  And we have denied it for lack of justification, but 
we’re still negotiating that item.  It’s approximately a $600,000 item, and it 
has to do with keeping the intelligent transportation system hardware and 
the system functioning during the construction of the project.  So we have 
different devices out there that help us to manage traffic, but when it’s under 
construction and you’re widening, you have to move a lot of stuff out of the 
way, and the contractor had to keep it temporarily operational, so he’s 
requesting additional compensation for that effort.  And we’re still 
negotiating on that item pending additional justification and documentation 
from the contractor, Capriotti. 

Martin: Okay.  I was aware of both those claims.  I just didn’t know if we had hired 
outside counsel or not.  So thanks for the clarification. 

Malfabon:  Not at this time. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Are all these outside counsel providers -- do they all 
go through the RFP process? 

Malfabon: These ones are hired directly through the Attorney General’s Office.  When 
we have advisors for NEON we went through the RFP process, but typically 
these ones are through the Attorney General’s Office through our Chief 
Deputy Attorney General, and with my approval. 

Gallagher: Dennis Gallagher from the Attorney General’s Office.  Board Member 
Fransway, some of these firms are selected based upon not a formal RFP 
process.  There are a small number of firms in the State of Nevada that do 
condemnation, inverse condemnation work.  So what we’ve done is we’ve 
identified approximately ten of those firms and asked them for an expression 
of interest.  Everything from hourly rates to resources, et cetera.  And 
through an interview process, those firms were selected. 

Fransway: Okay.  The reason for my question was there are a lot of firms out there, and 
I just wanted to make sure that our search is broad enough to make sure that 
we get the best qualified for the best cost. 

Gallagher: That’s our goal too, Board Member Fransway.  And as I pointed out, there 
are really a small number of firms that do this kind of work.  And we 
compete with other government agencies, utilities, as well as private 
landowners for those services.  So the pool is relatively small, but we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

29 

believe we’ve gotten the best legal representation that we can, keeping in 
mind cost and the processes that are involved.  Every time you pass, for 
example, a condemnation resolution, a clock starts by which we have to file, 
and the District Court’s, because by statute these matters get precedent in 
trial settings, they set the trials pretty much within a two-year period which 
leads us to almost a criminal calendar type of stack system.  And so that’s 
one of the reasons too.  We’ve been exploring trying to spread this out 
because we don’t want to be faced with the likelihood of having three cases 
go to trial within a month and have the same firm involved in them and 
inadequately be prepared for a trial.  So we will continue to explore and try 
to retain qualified counsel with experience in these various areas. 

Fransway: Thank you, Mr. Gallagher, and thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: I guess we’ll revisit my favorite case, this Falcon Capital.  I don’t know -- I 
know this information’s been presented in different forms, and I haven’t 
quite seen it (inaudible). 

Malfabon: And, Governor, we anticipate that next month we will have the summary of 
the costs associated with Falcon Capital, including right-of-way and legal. 

Sandoval: But right now, at least according to this chart, our offer was $8,167, and the 
owner’s demand was $33.5 million, and the settlement was over $20 
million. 

Malfabon: That was the binding arbitration decision. 

Sandoval: Yes.  And that doesn’t include our fees and costs which you said you’re 
going to gather.  But that 20 million, does that include the interest? 

Gallagher: Yes, Governor.  That’s all in. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So it’d be helpful to me when you present the fees and costs on top 
of that if we could break down that $20.7 million so I can understand better 
where that, you know, when you say all in, what -- how many chips are in 
there and what each one of those are.  And the other, I guess, issue that I 
notice is the gap between our offers and the demands.  And I know that the 
defendants in these cases will inflate their demands, but it just seems like 
we’ve been paying closer to what their demands are than what our offers 
have been.  And I don’t know if it’s avoidable or not, but I guess I’m more 
making a statement than asking a question that we’ll be watching how those 
things are going, because, like I said, the -- you know, I just don’t remember 
when I was on this Board, and perhaps it’s just become more of a specialty 
within the law with these law firms, but we’re spending an incredible 
amount of money on these things. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

30 

Gallagher: Governor, if I may very briefly, the initial offer in this case, and you’ll see it 
probably in a couple other cases, are based upon an appraised value and for 
a portion of the property owner’s property, and that’s what happened in this 
particular case.  NDOT really just needed a small portion of it.  The property 
owners then take the view that there had been a total taking of their 
property, and thus the numbers skyrocket.  And then in this case, and we’ll 
provide all the detail to the Board, we had both the total taking allegations of 
the real property, and then allegations of a total taking of their water rights.  
We’ve seen that in a few other cases.  However, the Las Vegas cases we 
don’t get a claim with water rights attached to them.  But some of the other 
cases that are out here, if you notice a huge discrepancy between NDOT’s 
offer and the landowners, typically what those are, the NDOT offer is based 
upon a condemnation action for a portion of their real property.  The 
property owners’ claim back is typically for an inverse condemnation 
wherein they allege that their entire property has been taken by NDOT. 

Sandoval: And we, in our last Agenda, hired consultants to value those water rights, so 
I also would like to see where we are in terms of the value of those water 
rights so that we can at least recapture a piece of this.  And I understand, 
Director Malfabon, that the federal government has reimbursed us for some 
of this; is that right? 

Malfabon: Yes.  We submitted some of these costs and have been reimbursed. 

Sandoval: So at some point, as this evolves, I’d like to see just a spreadsheet of exactly 
the entire history, at least physically, of the evolution and the closure of this 
case. 

Malfabon: And we hope to have that next month, Governor. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Any further questions from Board members?  Member Fransway. 

Martin: I have… 

Sandoval: Oh, let me go to Member Martin, and then I’ll go back to you, Member 
Fransway.  Member Martin. 

Martin: So in this instance, did we take possession of the 3,000 acre feet of water 
and the entire parcel of ground, or did we only take up possession of that 
portion that we wanted in the first place? 

Gallagher: Board Member Martin, for the record, Dennis Gallagher, the Attorney 
General’s Office.  The water rights and the real property were bifurcated 
into two proceedings.  NDOT purchased the 31 acres of real property as part 
of a settlement conference that was conducted by Judge Adams in Washoe 
County.  They paid approximately $10 million for that 31 acres.  The water 
issue went to binding arbitration.  And the arbitrator found that there was a 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

31 

total taking of 1,300 and some odd acre feet and awarded the costs for that 
plus interest on that.  Right now we’re in the process of getting those water 
rights conveyed to the State.  We’re having them appraised so we can 
present that to the Transportation Board. 

Krolicki: To offset that $20 million dollar, I mean, there’s an asset that we now own 
with beneficial use and you will perfect that water right and that will be -- 
that asset will be indicated, is it sellable? 

Gallagher: We certainly hope so, Lieutenant Governor.  In addition, you know, we do 
have now 31 acres of land in the north end of Washoe Valley.  What NDOT 
may ultimately do with that land, I’m sure they’re exploring their options.  
But in addition to the real estate itself, which would probably be an ideal 
location for the Lieutenant Governor’s mansion, there is a substantial 
amount of water rights, again, over 1,300 acre feet that will be conveyed to 
the State of Nevada. 

Sandoval: But we paid 3 million an acre for at least the real property, correct?  Yes? 

Gallagher: Yes, Governor.  I’m sorry.  I’m trying to do the math in my head. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I’m sorry.  Any further questions, Member Martin? 

Martin: I think the math -- and I’m just a contractor, but I think the math is like 
$300,000 an acre. 

Sandoval: Or 300,000. 

Gallagher: Yes. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I’m off… 

Martin: Yeah, $330,000 an acre. 

Sandoval: I’d rather be wrong in that direction, I assure you. 

Martin: Okay.  And so the water rights, once they’re deeded to -- they’d be deeded 
to the State, and then water rights become a salable -- and water rights was 
the other $12 million, is that what I’m hearing, or the other 10 million? 

Gallagher: Board Member Martin, Dennis Gallagher.  Yes, it was 12 million plus the 
interest and fees on it, which took it up to about 20 million, but, yes, that is 
about the rough math.  However, I’m somewhat reluctant to make that 
representation after I just made the mistake of saying 3 million instead of 
300,000 an acre. 

Sandoval: Well, that was my mistake.  That was Governor math there. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

32 

Malfabon: We did try to get the interest reduced, but the decision of the arbitrator was 
that he would not reduce that substantial… 

Martin: When you do a break out of this settlement, you’re going to break the 
interest out separately, right? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Martin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: The challenge, Member Martin, here is that the arbitrator in the water right 
hearing found that the water rights had no value, and that’s why we had to 
pay that amount of money. 

Martin: Wow.  Amazing. 

Sandoval: We’re hoping that this expert that we retain may perhaps find something 
differently. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: I guess I should correct that.  He found that they had value, but they weren’t 
marketable, is a better way to put that. 

Gallagher: Yes.  They couldn’t be severed from the real property. 

Sandoval: All right.  Any further question -- oh, Member Fransway, you have any 
questions? 

Fransway: Two questions, Governor.  First one, if NDOT acquires the rights of -- or the 
water rights through the settlement, are we not subject to proving beneficial 
use?  And if we are, is there a possibility of losing those water rights? 

Gallagher: Board Member Fransway, Dennis Gallagher from the Attorney General’s 
Office.  Excellent questions.  We can research that, but I believe that once 
we get title to the water rights, the State will be able to utilize them and put 
them up for sale as well as use them down there, take the water, irrigate the 
31 acres it acquired, et cetera. 

Fransway: Okay.  So the answer is, yes, we will have to prove beneficial use.  
Obviously we will, everybody else does.  And my second question is, are 
these cases remanded to State District Court or Federal Court or both? 

Gallagher: In this particular case, Board Member Fransway, it was commenced in State 
District Court in Washoe County.  The initial filing was the State suing for 
condemnation of a portion of that 31 acres.  And the real estate portion of it, 
or the real property portion of it, was resolved at a settlement conference 
with the Second Judicial District Court Judge, Judge Adams.  The parties 
agreed that the water portion of the claim would go to binding arbitration, 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

33 

and so an arbitrator was retained for purposes of the water rights aspect of 
the case. 

Fransway: Okay.  So the condemnation cases in general, do they mostly go to State 
District Courts? 

Gallagher: All of the condemnation cases are filed in State District Court, Board 
Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any further questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 8? 

Malfabon: Just to mention, Governor, on the fatality record, we have been seeing a 
good trend there with a reduction compared to this time last year.  There 
were some crashes resulting in fatalities in Las Vegas over the weekend.  
One in particular was just ill timed with -- tragic, but right after the race was 
over, the NASCAR event, affected because with -- when there is a fatality 
on a highway, we have to work with local law enforcement and the county 
coroner has to come out and look at the site and deal with the fatality.  So it 
did create some delays in traffic as a result.  But on the amount of fatals 
compared to last year, it is a good trend downward. 

I wanted to also mention that we were previously discussing the Wykoff 
case.  And on Page 1 of the monthly litigation report, you can see what the 
owner’s offer is compared to the NDOT offer, $10 million versus about 1.3 
million.  Unless there’s any other questions, that is Item No. 8. 

Sandoval: Hearing no further questions, we’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 9, public 
comment.  Is there any member of the public here in Carson City that would 
like to provide public comment to the Board? 

Malfabon: Governor, I would like to mention in the public comment, Dennis Taylor is 
actually trying to sneak out.  This is his last Board meeting.  He is going to 
be retiring, and we’ll definitely have his retirement ceremony at a future 
Board meeting, but he lives in Carson City, so he’ll be around.  But I wanted 
to wish him the best.  He’s been leading our Planning Division for several 
years now and we will miss him sorely.  We wish you the best, Dennis. 

Sandoval: Dennis, thank you. 

Fransway: Governor, if I may. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Dennis, I wish you well.  Dennis and I have gotten know each other very 
well over the past several years with my stint as a County Commissioner.  
And I can tell you that NDOT was well suited to have Dennis come up and 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation  
Board of Director’s Meeting 

March 11, 2013 
 

34 

talk as one of the representatives of NDOT.  And, Dennis, I’m going to miss 
you and I wish you well. 

Taylor: Thank you.  I appreciate it. 

Sandoval: We do appreciate your dignity, class, effort, everything on behalf of the 
people of the State of Nevada.  You’ve done a great job.  I’ll miss traveling 
with you as well.  But, Dennis, thank you, personally for everything that 
you’ve done for the State of Nevada.  Thank you.  Any public comment 
from Las Vegas? 

Martin: None here, sir. 

Sandoval: Is there a motion for adjournment? 

Krolicki: So moved. 

Sandoval: Motion by the Lieutenant Governor, second by Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Second. 

Sandoval: All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes.  This meeting is adjourned.  Thank you, ladies and 
gentlemen. 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 

 



 
          March 18, 2012 

MEMORANDUM 
   

TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
ITEM #6:  Receive a Report on the Status of Project NEON – Informational item only 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is a follow up discussion from the June 25, 2012 and November 6, 2012 Board 
Meetings. 
 

 
Right of Way 

Phase 1 Right of Way acquisitions are continuing, and are anticipated to be under budget.   
 

 
P3 Advisors 

The project team has been identified and the legal and financial advisor’s agreements were 
approved during the March board meeting.  CH2M Hill’s contract as P3 Technical Advisor has 
been negotiated and is part of the approvals for this board meeting.   
 

 
P3 RFP Development 

The project team has developed a schedule to guide the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
development process.  A major step is a high level project delivery type analysis comparing 
different Public-Private-Partnership delivery types to bonding.  Once the analysis is complete, a 
recommendation will be made to the Board for approval in June or July Board Meeting.  As a 
result, the schedule has been extended by two months. 
 
Background: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on Project NEON progress. 
 
Analysis: 
 

 
Phase 1 Right of Way 

As of March 25, 2013, 24 out of 48 parcels have been acquired, for a total expenditure of $64 
million of the $118 million budgeted.  Current projections indicate the total costs for Right of 
Way will be 10%-15% under budget. 
As the project team continues to acquire Right of Way, anticipated dates for the acquisition 
process are being coordinated with Financial Management so that the balance of the Highway 
Fund can continue to be accurately predicted. 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



 
P3 Advisors 

The current agreement with CH2M Hill includes scope to complete final design for Phase 1 as a 
Design Bid Build project.  A new agreement was required to include the P3 Technical Advisor 
scope of work, therefore, the previous agreement was amended to reduce the scope and cost.  
As a result, an overall cost savings of $1,251,891.76 was realized.  
 

 
P3 RFP Development  

I have directed the project team to analyze several delivery options, specifically Design Build 
Finance (DBF), Design Build Finance Operate and Maintain (DBFOM), and bonding.  This is to 
ensure the most feasible, efficient and cost effective delivery model will be selected.   The 
results of the analysis and a recommendation for approval will be presented to the Board in 
June or July 2013.   
 
The project team, with the input of the legal, financial and technical advisors have reviewed and 
updated the delivery schedule to include the time required for the delivery option analyses. The 
team anticipates submitting the draft RFP for board approval in February 2014, in lieu of 
December 2013 as presented in November 2012.    
 
The following table shows the anticipated change to the schedule. 
 

Task
Updated 
Duration 

Original 
Schedule

Updated 
Schedule

Procure Legal and Financial 
Advisors

4 months 02/2013 02/2013

Prepare RFQ 5 months 05/2013 07/2013
Advertise RFQ and Short List 
Proposals/Prepare Draft RFP

4 months 09/2013 11/2013

Industry Review (Draft RFP)* 3 months 12/2013 02/2014
Advertise RFP, evaluate 

proposals, and select finalist*
5 months 05/2014 07/2014

Contract Negotiations and 
Award*

3 months 08/2014 10/2014

*Transportation Board Approval Needed to Advance

Stage 1
Stage 2

 
 
The Next Steps: 
 
The project team will continue to develop the information necessary to perform the delivery 
option analysis, and will have a recommendation to the Transportation Board in the June or July 
2013 Board Meeting. 
 
  



The anticipated delivery of the project is broken out below in terms of stages. 
 

• Stage 1 – RFP Development 
• Stage 2 – Selection, Negotiation, and Contract Execution 
• Stage 3 – Construction Contract Administration 
• Stage 4 – Operations and Maintenance Administration (possibly) 

 
At this time, the Department has chosen to contract with the legal, financial, and technical 
advisors for the work necessary to complete only Stage 1.  If the Transportation Board approves 
the project to continue to move forward, the project team will have to amend the advisor 
agreements to include the scope and costs necessary to complete Stage 2.  The project team 
will continue this approach with subsequent stages of the process. 

 
List of Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Cole Mortensen, Senior Project Manager 



 
MEMORANDUM 

           April 1, 2013  
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 7:  Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 – For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to present to the Board a list of construction contracts over $5,000,000 for 
discussion and approval. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per statute.  
  
The attached construction contracts constitute all contracts over $5,000,000 for which the bids were 
opened and the analysis completed by the Bid Review and Analysis Team and Contract Compliance 
section of the Department from February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada Revised 
Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or Department policies and 
procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Over $5,000,000, February 16, 

2013 to March 18, 2013. 
 

Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all contracts listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by: Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 1 of 25



Attachment  

A 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 2 of 25



 
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS OVER $5,000,000 
February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 

 

1. February 21, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. the following bids were opened and read related to Department of 
Transportation Contract No. 3532, Project No. STP-015-1(151).  The project is to re-open F Street 
to Traffic under I-15, in Las Vegas, Clark County. 

 
Las Vegas Paving Corporation .......................................................................... $13,600,000.00 
Capriati Construction Corp., Inc. ....................................................................... $13,815,900.34 
Meadow Valley Contractors, Inc. ....................................................................... $14,392,869.82 

 
The Director recommends awarding the contract to Las Vegas Paving in the amount of 
$13,600,000.00. 
 
Engineer’s Estimate: $12,124,268.14 

 
2. February 21, 2013 at 2:30 p.m. the following bids were opened and read related to Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3533, Project No. IM-080-4(086).  The project is 2.0 Inch Mill, 1 Inch 
Plantmix Bituminous Overlay (Type 3), 3 Inch Plantmix Bituminous Surface (Type 2C) with 0.75 
Inch Open Graded Wearing Course, Paved Crossover, Chain Up Areas, and Work at Beowawe 
Interchange on I 80 from the Beginning of Asphalt Pavement, 0.846 Miles West of Emigrant Pass 
Interchange to 1.097 Miles East of the Eureka/Elko County Line. 

 
Q & D Construction, Inc. .............................................................................. $14,283,000.00 
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. ................................................................. $15,248,007.00 
Road and Highway Builders LLC ................................................................. $15,494,494.00 
Granite Construction Company ................................................................... $15,959,959.00 
Staker Parson Companies. .......................................................................... $17,527,449.89 
W.W. Clyde & Co. ....................................................................................... $17,651,471.17 
 

 The Director recommends awarding the contract to Q & D Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
 $14,283,000.00 
 
 Engineer’s Estimate: $15,568,077.03 
 
3. March 14, 2013 at 12:00 p.m. the following bids were opened and read related to Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3537, Project No. STP-BR-080-4(092).  The project is coldmilling and 
placing plantmix bituminous surface, paving crossovers, and purchasing lighting fixtures, on 1-80 at 
the Carlin Tunnels (Carlin Tunnels CMAR GMP #1). 

 
Q & D Construction, Inc. (CMAR) .................................................................. $2,818,944.00 
Stanley Consultants (ICE)  ............................................................................ $2,757,822.30 
 

The Director recommends awarding the contract to the CMAR, Q & D Construction, Inc. in the 
amount of $2,818,944.00 

 
 Engineer’s Estimate: $2,725,002.13 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 3 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 4 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 5 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 6 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 7 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 8 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 9 of 25



Price Sensitivity Report
Date February 22, 2013

$12,124,268.14 $13,600,000.00 $13,815,900.34 $215,900.34 $1,475,731.86 112.17%

Item No. Quantity Description Engineer's 
Estimate Unit 

Price

Low Bid Unit 
Price

2nd Bid Unit Price Qty Chg Req'd to 
Chg Bid Order

% Change in Qty 
Req'd

Low % of EE Significantly 
Unbalanced

Quantity Check Comments

2000100 250.00 SURVEY CREW 200.00 140.00 182.00 -5,140.48 -2056.19% 70.00% Yes EE is reasonable.
2020400 3,336.00 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE BARRIER 

RAIL
15.00 15.00 13.98 211,667.00 6344.93% 100.00% No EE is reasonable.  Quantity was verified.

2020565 601.00 REMOVAL OF RETAINING WALL 500.00 45.00 88.90 -4,918.00 -818.30% 9.00% Yes non standard use of bid item, removing 
wall on top of MSE wall and removing 
moment slab and barrier.  EE ok.  Quantity 
was verified.

2020700 828.00 REMOVAL OF WATER PIPE 34.00 105.00 99.62 40,130.17 4846.64% 308.82% Yes EE is close to historical prices, difficult site 
conditions?  Quantity was verified.

2020990 48,960.00 REMOVAL OF BITUMINOUS SURFACE 
(COLD MILLING)

1.50 1.00 1.04 -5,397,508.50 -11024.32% 66.67% Yes EE is reasonable.  Quantity was verified.

2021230 1,332.00 REMOVAL OF STORM DRAIN PIPE 50.00 44.00 41.60 89,958.48 6753.64% 88.00% No $40-$50 reasonable price.
2030140 28,500.00 ROADWAY EXCAVATION 17.00 17.00 16.43 378,772.53 1329.03% 100.00% No EE is reasonable. 
2060110 15,372.00 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION 22.00 27.00 12.58 14,972.28 97.40% 122.73% No EE is reasonable.
2070110 3,464.00 GRANULAR BACKFILL 25.00 30.00 29.64 599,723.17 17313.02% 120.00% No EE ok, maybe sightly low for work required.

2070130 4,360.00 BACKFILL 20.00 10.25 9.97 771,072.64 17685.15% 51.25% Yes $15-$20 average price, $10 ok for larger 
quantity.  Quantity was verified.

2120870 331.00 DECORATIVE ROCK (TYPE A) 200.00 91.00 50.54 5,336.14 1612.13% 45.50% Yes EE High.  Quantity was verified.
2121950 2.00 DECORATIVE STRUCTURE 104,000.00 100,000.00 73,320.00 8.09 404.61% 96.15% No EE OK
2121960 1,680.00 TILE (TYPE A) 180.00 156.00 222.36 -3,253.47 -193.66% 86.67% No No historical prices
2121961 863.00 TILE (TYPE B) 44.00 165.00 176.77 -18,343.27 -2125.52% 375.00% Yes No historical prices.  Quantity was verified.

3020130 14,750.00 TYPE 1 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE 15.00 20.00 12.63 29,294.48 198.61% 133.33% No EE OK between low and 2nd bid
4020190 8,040.00 PLANTMIX SURFACING (TYPE 2C)(WET) 83.00 82.00 88.40 -33,734.43 -419.58% 98.80% No EE OK

4030120 3,130.00 PLANTMIX OPEN-GRADED SURFACING 
(1/2-INCH)(WET)

95.00 105.00 97.24 27,822.21 888.89% 110.53% No EE slightly low, Bid prices are good.

5020530 70.00 LAMINATED ELASTOMERIC BEARING 
PAD

2,500.00 750.00 967.52 -992.55 -1417.93% 30.00% Yes $2k-$2.5k historical average price. Not 
sure why bids came back so cheap.  
Quantity was verified.

5020720 58.00 CLASS A CONCRETE (MINOR) 600.00 1,650.00 1,811.23 -1,339.08 -2308.76% 275.00% Yes EE low.  Quantity was verified.
5020920 2,596.00 CLASS A CONCRETE, MODIFIED 

(MAJOR)
500.00 658.00 444.56 1,011.53 38.96% 131.60% No EE ok

5021000 1,541.00 CLASS E CONCRETE, MODIFIED 
(MAJOR)

500.00 612.00 557.61 3,969.49 257.59% 122.40% No EE OK

5021780 569.00 STRIP SEAL EXPANSION JOINT (3-INCH 
MOVEMENT)

250.00 326.00 164.32 1,335.36 234.68% 130.40% No EE OK

5030130 1.00 PRESTRESSING CAST-IN-PLACE 
CONCRETE

171,000.00 215,000.00 227,515.60 n/a n/a 125.73% No Bridge estimate Item.

5050100 695,656.00 REINFORCING STEEL 1.00 1.10 0.83 799,630.89 114.95% 110.00% No EE ok
5060110 38,001.00 STRUCTURAL STEEL 3.00 4.00 3.54 469,348.57 1235.10% 133.33% No EE ok
5060470 289.00 APPROACH SLAB RESTRAINER UNIT 175.00 45.50 143.52 -2,202.62 -762.15% 26.00% Yes EE ok weighted avg. $175

Capriati 
Construction Corp

Diff. Between Low 
& 2nd

Diff. Between EE & 
Low

Low Bid % of EEEngineer's 
Estimate

Las Vegas Paving 
Corp

Contract No: 3532

Project ID/EA #: 60544
County: CLARK
Range: R30 $11,500,000.01 to $13,500,000
Working Days:  335

Project #: STP-015-1(151)

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 10 of 25



Item No. Quantity Description Engineer's 
Estimate Unit 

Price

Low Bid Unit 
Price

2nd Bid Unit Price Qty Chg Req'd to 
Chg Bid Order

% Change in Qty 
Req'd

Low % of EE Significantly 
Unbalanced

Quantity Check Comments

5090140 5,050.00 DRILLED SHAFT FOUNDATION (36-
INCH)

150.00 266.00 221.84 4,889.05 96.81% 177.33% Yes Weighted avg. $145 historically.  EE low.  
Quantity was verified.

6030350 847.00 36-INCH REINFORCED CONCRETE 
PIPE, CLASS III

125.00 77.00 73.21 56,965.79 6725.59% 61.60% No $115 avg historical price.  EE high

6091270 10.00 60-INCH PRECAST REINFORCED 
CONCRETE MANHOLE, TYPE 2

5,500.00 10,000.00 9,490.00 423.33 4233.34% 181.82% Yes $5500 avg historical price.  EE low

6131100 1,460.00 CLASS A CONCRETE SIDEWALK (4-
INCH)

30.00 51.00 46.80 51,404.84 3520.88% 170.00% Yes $36 avg historical price.  EE low.  Quantity 
was verified.

6230505 14.00 ORNAMENTAL STREET LIGHT 1,400.00 8,000.00 7,800.00 1,079.50 7710.73% 571.43% Yes $1400 as most expensive in bid history.  
This price appears to include the pole and 
foundation which has a separate bid item.  
Quantitiy was verified.

6230580 14.00 STEEL POLE, TYPE 7 (MODIFIED) 3,900.00 4,800.00 4,680.00 1,799.17 12851.21% 123.08% No No historical prices.  EE low
6231785 2,542.00 1-INCH CONDUIT (METAL) 20.00 46.00 44.51 144,899.56 5700.22% 230.00% Yes EE is about average price, may be difficult 

installation
6232682 1.00 TEMPORARY ITS 70,000.00 26,000.00 24,960.00 n/a n/a 37.14% Yes No info, apparently EE is high.
6234101 56.00 LANDSCAPE LIGHTING (TYPE B) 750.00 1,200.00 1,148.16 4,164.74 7437.04% 160.00% Yes No info, apparently EE is low
6240110 4,000.00 FLAGGER 50.00 67.50 54.65 16,801.58 420.04% 135.00% No $50-$55 reasonable price.
6240140 335.00 TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPERVISOR 450.00 315.00 282.88 6,721.68 2006.47% 70.00% Yes $500 avg price EE is ok.
6240530 20.00 RENT EQUIPMENT (OFFICE SPACE) 2,000.00 3,200.00 2,444.00 285.58 1427.91% 160.00% Yes EE low. $3400 avg.
6250510 4,579.00 RENT PORTABLE PRECAST 

CONCRETE BARRIER RAIL
25.00 25.50 33.48 -27,055.18 -590.85% 102.00% No EE good.

6280120 1.00 MOBILIZATION 528,622.52 659,354.90 2,098,086.00 n/a n/a 124.73% No
6290100 335.00 TIME RELATED OVERHEAD 3,700.00 2,800.00 2,393.33 530.90 158.48% 75.68% No EE good.
6370190 1.00 DUST CONTROL 15,858.67 180,000.00 396,663.90 n/a n/a 1135.03% Yes
6380280 444.00 16-INCH DUCTILE IRON PIPE 200.00 160.00 154.75 41,123.87 9262.13% 80.00% No small sample size EE ok
6600100 908.00 PNEUMATICALLY PLACED CONCRETE 

MORTAR (5-INCHES)
150.00 139.00 171.60 -6,622.71 -729.37% 92.67% No EE good.

Additional Comments:

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 11 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 12 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 13 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 14 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 15 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 16 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 17 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 18 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 19 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 20 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 21 of 25



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 22 of 25



Apparent Low Bidder Stanley Consultants - ICE $2,757,822.30

Apparent 2nd Q & D Construction, Inc. $2,818,944.00

Contract Number:

Designer:

3537

CHRISTOPHER DEAL

STEVE BIRDSenior Designer:

Estimate Range: R22 $2,650,000.01 to $3,200,000

Nevada Department of Transportation
Unofficial Bid Results

March 25, 2013

Working Days: 15

District: DISTRICT 3

$3,700

3/14/2013 12:00 pm

Project Number: STP-BR-080-4(092)

County: ELKO

I 80 AT THE CARLIN TUNNELS.  MP EL- 7.5 TO EL- 9.33. Location:

Liquidated Damages:

Bid Opening Date and Time:

Description: Coldmilling and placing plantmix bituminous surface, paving crossovers, and purchasing lighting fixtures

Bidders:
Actual

Bid Amount

1 Stanley Consultants - ICE 
383 West Vine Street
Murray, UT  84123
(801) 965-4708

$2,757,822.30

2 Q & D Construction, Inc. - CMAR
P.O. Box 10865
Reno, NV  89510-
(775) 786-2677

$2,818,944.00

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 23 of 25



CONTRACT NO.:

PROJECT NO.: Awarded to:

Amount:

Date:

3537

STP-BR-080-4(092)
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT LENGTH: 1.64

SHEET 1 OF 2

I 80 AT THE CARLIN TUNNELS.  MP EL- 7.5 TO
EL- 9.33. 

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Stanley Consultants - ICE CMAR
383 West Vine Street, Suite 400

Murray UT 84123

Q & D Construction, Inc.
P.O. Box 10865
Reno NV 89510-

BID BOND 5% BID BOND 5%

BID TABULATION

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION

CARSON CITY, NEVADA

12:00 PM on March 14, 2013Tabulation of Bids opened at:
1263 South Stewart Street, Carson City, NV  89712

WORKING DAYS: 15

UNIT PRICE AMOUNTAMOUNTUNIT PRICEDESCRIPTIONUNITQUANTITYITEM NO. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

REMOVAL OF COMPOSITE202 0935 30.00 34,200.0047,287.2041.4845,600.0040.00CUYD1,140.00

SURFACE

REMOVAL OF BITUMINOUS202 0990 1.20 34,692.0039,317.601.3657,820.002.00SQYD28,910.00

SURFACE (COLD MILLING)

STRUCTURE EXCAVATION206 0110 30.00 5,070.005,411.3832.028,450.0050.00CUYD169.00

GRANULAR BACKFILL207 0110 50.00 4,500.004,525.2050.284,500.0050.00CUYD90.00

TYPE 1 CLASS B AGGREGATE302 0130 30.00 42,600.0042,259.2029.7642,600.0030.00TON1,420.00

BASE

PLANTMIXING MISCELLANEOUS402 0100 4.00 16,544.0016,874.884.0841,360.0010.00SQYD4,136.00

AREAS

PLANTMIX SURFACING (TYPE402 0190 112.00 623,840.00648,180.90116.37584,850.00105.00TON5,570.00

2C)(WET)

LIQUID ASPHALT, TYPE MC-406 0110 685.00 685.00716.18716.18600.00600.00TON1.00

70NV

EMULSIFIED ASPHALT, TYPE407 0190 590.00 7,670.007,926.36609.727,800.00600.00TON13.00

SS-1H (DILUTED)

12-INCH METAL END SECTION604 2395 150.00 300.00300.00150.00400.00200.00EACH2.00

12 - INCH HIGH DENSITY605 0140 40.00 39,200.0040,944.4041.7839,200.0040.00LINFT980.00

POLYETHYLENE PIPE, TYPE S

RIPRAP (CLASS 150)610 0170 150.00 300.00750.00375.00500.00250.00CUYD2.00

RIPRAP BEDDING,(CLASS 150)610 0460 225.00 225.00238.00238.00250.00250.00CUYD1.00

GUIDE POSTS (RIGID)619 0200 100.00 6,000.004,800.0080.004,500.0075.00EACH60.00

LUMINAIRE, TYPE A623 0267 2,415.00 1,637,370.001,537,026.002,267.001,429,224.002,108.00EACH678.00

LUMINAIRE, TYPE B623 0268 2,173.00 241,203.00225,330.002,030.00196,470.001,770.00EACH111.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPERVISOR624 0140 750.00 11,250.0011,175.00745.007,500.00500.00DAY15.00

RENT TRAFFIC CONTROL625 0490 29,000.00 29,000.0035,000.0035,000.0050,000.0050,000.00LS1.00

DEVICES

MOBILIZATION628 0120 50,000.00 50,000.0054,000.0054,000.00154,027.44154,027.44LS1.00

WATERBORNE PAVEMENT632 0580 700.00 2,100.003,840.001,280.006,000.002,000.00MILE3.00

STRIPING (TYPE II)(SOLID

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 24 of 25



CONTRACT NO.:

PROJECT NO.: Awarded to:

Amount:

Date:

3537

STP-BR-080-4(092)
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT LENGTH: 1.64

SHEET 2 OF 2

I 80 AT THE CARLIN TUNNELS.  MP EL- 7.5 TO
EL- 9.33. 

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Stanley Consultants - ICE CMAR
383 West Vine Street, Suite 400

Murray UT 84123

Q & D Construction, Inc.
P.O. Box 10865
Reno NV 89510-

BID BOND 5% BID BOND 5%

BID TABULATION

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION

CARSON CITY, NEVADA

12:00 PM on March 14, 2013Tabulation of Bids opened at:
1263 South Stewart Street, Carson City, NV  89712

WORKING DAYS:

UNIT PRICE AMOUNTAMOUNTUNIT PRICEDESCRIPTIONUNITQUANTITYITEM NO. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

WHITE)

WATERBORNE PAVEMENT632 0780 1,330.00 1,995.001,920.001,280.004,500.003,000.00MILE1.50

STRIPING (TYPE II)(DOUBLE

SOLID YELLOW)

TEMPORARY POLLUTION637 0110 2,500.00 2,500.002,500.002,500.0010,000.0010,000.00LS1.00

CONTROL

DUST CONTROL637 0190 2,700.00 2,700.002,500.002,500.003,850.693,850.69LS1.00

RISK RESERVE667 0010 25,000.00 25,000.0025,000.0025,000.0025,000.0025,000.00LS1.00

2,818,944.002,757,822.302,725,002.13TOTAL

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                          Page 25 of 25



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             April 1, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 8:  Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from February 16, 2013 to March 18, 
2013. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements and amendments which take the total agreement above 
$300,000 during the period from February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements over $300,000, February 16, 2013 
to March 18, 2013. 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by:  Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 1 of 48



Attachment  

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 2 of 48



                           Attachment A

Line No Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date
Agree 
Type Notes

1 25010 01 EL AERO 
SERVICES INC

FUEL SERVICES TO DEPT AIRCRAFT N 270,000.00    560,000.00 830,000.00    -              10/27/10 9/30/14 4/8/13 Service AMD 1 4-8-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE 
FROM 6-30-13 TO 9-30-14 AND INCREASE 
AUTHORITY $560,000.00 FROM $270,000.00 TO 
$830,000.00 FOR CONTINUED FUEL SERVICES 
FOR THE DEPARTMENTS AIRPLANES.
10-27-10: SUPPLIER TO PROVIDE FUEL 
SERVICES TO DEPARTMENT AIRCRAFT, 
CARSON CITY, NV. B/L#: NV19681002544

2 09113 00 CH2M HILL TECHNICAL ADVISORS FOR 
PROJECT NEON

Y 4,900,547.33 -              4,900,547.33 -              4/8/13 7/31/14 -          Service 
Provider

4-1-13: TO PROVIDE TECHNICAL ADVISOR AND 
P3 DESIGN SUPPORT SERVICES FOR PROJECT 
NEON AS A P3 PROJECT
(NOTE THIS AGREEMENT IS RELATED TO  
AMENDMENT #4 TO AGREEMENT #30208 
LOCATED ON LINE ITEM #26 OF THE 
AGREEMENTS FOR INFORMATION REPORT)

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

 February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 3 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 4 of 48



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

 
DATE: 02/22/13  

 
To:   Rudy Malfabon, Director  
From:  Scott Sisco, Assistant Director Administration 
Subject:  Amendment Summary for Extension of Jet Fuel Services for Flight Operations  
 

 
Amendment No. 1 for Highway Agreement P250-10-059 extends the ending date of the 
agreement from June 30, 2013, to September 30, 2014 and increases the amount of the 
agreement by $560,000 to $830,000.   
 
The service agreement provides for Jet Fuel Service for the NDOT planes.  The increase in the 
amount allows for the increased cost of fuel over the term on the agreement.  The extension of 
the agreement allows time to create a new Request for Proposal after the hiring of a chief pilot 
to serve as project manager. 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

(Use Local Information) 

 
 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 5 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 6 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 7 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 8 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 9 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 10 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 11 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 12 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 13 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 14 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 15 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 16 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 17 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 18 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 19 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 20 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 21 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 22 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 23 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 24 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 25 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 26 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 27 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 28 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 29 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 30 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 31 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 32 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 33 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 34 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 35 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 36 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 37 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 38 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 39 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 40 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 41 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 42 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 43 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 44 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 45 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 46 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 47 of 48



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                            Page 48 of 48



 
MEMORANDUM 

           April 1, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 9:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 
• Agreements under $300,000 executed February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the 

Board of Examiners February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 
 

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 
 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 1 of 19



The attached construction contracts, agreements and settlements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 and agreements executed 
by the Department from February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013.  There was one settlement 
during the reporting period. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    

 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 
 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements – Under $300,000, 
February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013 
 

C) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Settlements approved at March 12, 2013 
Board of Examiners meeting 
 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 2 of 19



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 3 of 19



 
 STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED - UNDER $5,000,000 

February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013  

 
1. February 7, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read related to Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3531, Project No. SP-000M(188). The project is to remove and 
replace expansion joints on I-15 between SR 593, Tropicana Avenue and SR573 Craig Road, in 
Clark County.  
 
Las Vegas Paving Corporation  ................................................................................. $308,500.00 
Capriati Construction Corp., Inc. ............................................................................... $422,648.63 
MMC, Inc. ................................................................................................................. $429,855.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract on March 14, 2013, to Las Vegas Paving Corporation in the 
amount of $308,500.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the State will 
enter into contract with the firm.  

 
Engineer's Estimate: $374,181.53  
 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 4 of 19



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 5 of 19



                                          Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

1 06513 00 LAS VEGAS VALLEY 
WATER DIST

UTILITY ADJ NEON Y 61,600.00            -                  61,600.00        5,600.00             02/20/13 02/15/15           - Facility 02-20-13: ADJUSTMENT AND/OR RELOCATION OF MANHOLE 
AND VALVE COVERS ON PROJECT NEON, FROM US 95 TO I-
15, ROUTE 15 (SPAGHETTI BOWL TO SOUTH OF SAHARA), 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

2 07713 00 SOUTHWEST GAS CORP CC FREEWAY UTILITY 
ADJUST

N 84,560.93            -                  84,560.93        -                     03/07/13 06/07/14           - Facility 03-12-13: CARSON CITY FREEWAY ACQUISITION UTILITY 
ADJUSTMENT, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV19571000091

3 07513 00 NV ENERGY US 95 NEON Y 2,413,313.84       -                  2,413,313.84    -                     03/08/13 03/08/33           - Facility 03-08-13: TO ADJUST AND/OR RELOCATE MULTIPLE CIRCUIT 
TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION, COMMUNICATION LINES, & 
RELATED APPURTENANCE ALONG US 95 (NEON)CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

4 08513 00 FALCON SYSTEMS 
COMPANY

RELOCATE COST 
CHARTER CC FWY

Y 72,340.03            -                  72,340.03        -                     03/12/13 06/12/13           - Facility 03-13-13: RELOCATION COST OF CHARTER 
COMMUNICATION, CARSON CITY FREEWAY, CARSON CITY. 
NV B/L#: NV20051331833

5 31108 01 WALDMAN ENTERPRISES 
INC

PARKING/BEAUTIFY 
(P360-87-030)

Y -                      -                  -                   17,250.00           10/01/07 09/30/17 03/15/13 Lease AMD 1 03-15-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 09-30-12 
TO 09-30-17. 09-17-08: MULTI-USE LEASE FOR PARKING AND 
BEAUTIFICATION (REPLACES AGREEMENT P360-87-030) IN 
CLARK COUNTY.  NV B/L#:19871030819

6 47812 00 CITY LAUNDRY & VOGUE 
CLEANERS

PARCEL: S-046-EL-
055.911

N -                      -                  -                   1,180.00             08/01/12 07/31/32           - Lease 08-01-12: LEASE PARCEL S-046-EL-155.911, ELKO COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20051006818

7 06613 00 THE KEY FOUNDATION LEASE 1520 ELLIS AVE 
FOR NEON

Y -                      -                  -                   5,722.84             02/19/13 03/27/18           - Lease 02-19-13: NEON PROPERTY FOR LEASE AT 1520 ELLIS AVE, 
PARCEL I-015-CL-041.576, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19911013856

8 08813 00 ERIC EILER RENT 1203 CHARMAST 
LN IN LV

Y 7,790.45              -                  7,790.45          -                     03/15/13 05/15/18           - Rent 03-15-13: RENTING 1203 CHARMAST LANE, LAS VEGAS, UNTIL 
ACQUISITION IS COMPLETE, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NONE 
(PRIVATE PARTY)

9 10110 01 OFFICE OF SPONSORED 
PROGRAMS

EFFECTIVENESS OF 
WILDLIFE OVRP

Y 155,454.00          -                  155,454.00      -                     05/26/10 03/31/14 03/14/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 03-14-13: NO COST TIME EXTENSION FROM 03-31-13 
TO 03-31-14 TO ALLOW FOR COMPLETION OF RESEARCH 
PROJECT.05-26-10: TO CONDUCT A RESEARCH PROJECT 
ENTITLED "EFFECTIVENESS OF US93 WILDLIFE OVERPASS 
FOR MULE DEER AND OTHER WILDLIFE IN NEVADA".ELKO 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: EXEMPT

10 09311 01 ATKINS NORTH AMERICA STATEWIDE T.I.M. 
SERVICES

N 1,200,000.00       -                  1,200,000.00    -                     02/28/11 06/30/13 02/21/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 02-21-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 02-28-13 
TO 06-30-13, TO CONTINUE FACILITATION OF OUR 
STATEWIDE AND REGIONAL TRAFFIC INCIDENT 
MANAGEMENT (T.I.M.) SERVICES.02-28-11: 
ESTABLISH/FACILITATE STATEWIDE AND REGIONAL T.I.M. 
PROGRAMS, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 19981347315

11 15011 01 HIGH DESERT 
MICROIMAGING INC

IMAGING/FILMING 
EQUIP MAINT

N 49,000.00            57,000.00        106,000.00      -                     04/07/11 03/31/15 02/22/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 02-22-13: TO EXTEND THE TERMINATION DATE TWO 
YEARS TO 03-31-15, ADD MAINTENANCE FOR AN ADDITIONAL 
SCANNER AND TO INCREASE AUTHORITY BY$57,000.00 
BRINGING THE TOTAL AGREEMENT TO $106,000.00. 4-7-11: 
PROVIDE MAINTENANCE ON IMAGING/FILMING EQUIPMENT, 
CARSON CITY.  NV B/L#: NV19951110096

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000

 February 16, 2013 to March 18, 2013

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 6 of 19



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

12 08312 01 SNELL AND WILMER, 
L.L.P.

REPRESENTATION 
CONTRACT 3377

N 150,000.00          75,000.00        225,000.00      -                     03/01/12 03/01/15 02/18/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 02-18-13: EXTENDS TERMINATION DATE FROM 6-30-14 
TO 3-1-15 AND INCREASES AUTHORITY BY $75,000.00, FROM 
$150,000.00 TO $225,000.00 FOR CONTINUED SERVICES 
UNTIL RESOLUTION OF THE LAWSUIT.03-01-12: 
REPRESENTATION BY SNELL & WILLMER LLP IN THE MATTER 
OF CONTRACT 3377 AWARDED TO PEEK CONSTRUCTION 
AND ITS REQUEST FOR EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT CLAIM AND 
COMPLAINT AGAINST NDOT FILED IN 1ST JD 120C 00030 1B. 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20011000455

13 06413 00 UPRR AUTO LIGHT XING 
HAZEN NV

Y 301,379.00          -                  301,379.00      -                     08/02/12 09/01/13           - Service 
Provider

08-02-12: INSTALL AUTOMATIC FLASHING LIGHT CROSSING 
SIGNALS WITH GATE AT CALIFORNIA ROAD IN HAZEN NV 
(DOT 740763D). CHURCHILL COUNTY. NV B/L #: EXEMPT

14 29812 01 GALENA GROUP INC NEXTEL REBANDING 
PROJECT

N 24,000.00            20,000.00        44,000.00        -                     08/20/12 06/30/15 02/19/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 02-19-13: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY FROM $24,000.00 
TO $44,000.00 DUE TO ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE WITH THE 
NEGOTIATION BETWEEN SPRINT NEXTEL FOR REBANDING 
PROJECT.08-20-12: ASSIST THE DEPARTMENT WITH 
NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN SPRINT NEXTEL FOR THE 
REBANDING PROJECT, CARSON CITY AND WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L #: NV2021368878

15 07213 00 SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK 
LTD

STATE V RAILROAD 
PASS

N 275,000.00          -                  275,000.00      -                     01/23/13 01/31/15           - Service 
Provider

1-23-13: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. 
RAILROAD PASS, 8TH JD A-12-665330 (BOULDER CITY 
BYPASS PROJECT)  CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19981131366

16 07313 00 SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK, 
LTD

STATE V K & L DIRT 
A12666050

N 275,000.00          -                  275,000.00      -                     01/23/13 01/31/15           - Service 
Provider

1-23-13: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. 
K & L DIRT, 8TH JD A-12-666050 (BOULDER CITY BYPASS 
PROJECT)  CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19981131366

17 07413 00 SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK, 
LTD

STATE V I-15 AND 
CACTUS

N 200,000.00          -                  200,000.00      -                     01/23/13 02/28/15           - Service 
Provider

01-23-13: LEGAL SUPPORT CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. I-15 
AND CACTUS; 8TH JD A-12-664403 (CACTUS PROJECT)CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19981131366

18 07113 00 SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK, 
LTD

STATE V WYKOFF A-12-
656578

N 275,000.00          -                  275,000.00      -                     01/29/13 01/31/15           - Service 
Provider

1-29-13: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. 
WYKOFF, 8TH JD A-12-656578 (WARM SPRINGS PROJECT). 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19981131366

19 46412 00 JACOBS FREIGHT ASSESSMENT 
STUDY

N 120,000.00          -                  120,000.00      -                     02/07/13 02/07/14           - Service 
Provider

2-7-13: FREIGHT ASSESSMENT STUDY TO ESTABLISH A 
GUIDING FRAMEWORK FOR NEAR-TERM AND LONG RANGE 
FREIGHT POLICY AND FREIGHT PLAN. STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 
NV20081035082

20 05913 00 CH2M HILL ENG. SUPPORT 
BOULDER /US93

N -                      -                  -                   -                     02/12/13 02/12/15           - Service 
Provider

2-12-13: ENGINEERING SUPPORT REGARDING THE BOULDER 
CITY/US 93 CORRIDOR STUDY HISTORICAL DOCUMENTATION 
SUPPORT. SERVICES PROVIDED AS A COURTESY TO NDOT 
PER EXHIBIT A: COMPENSATION. LAS VEGAS AND CARSON 
CITY. NV B/L#: NV199310655492

21 06713 00 WESTERN SINGLE PLY VEHICLE STORAGE 
ROOF BLUE JAY

N 88,033.00            -                  88,033.00        -                     02/25/13 06/30/13           - Service 
Provider

2-25-2013: QA-005-13 REPLACE ROOF ON THE VEHICLE 
STORAGE BUILDING AT THE BLUE JAY MAINTENCE STATION 
IN NYE COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19771002316

22 06813 00 ALL AMERICAN VAN & 
STORAGE

MOVE PARCEL I-015-CL-
576 R1

Y 2,313.75              -                  2,313.75          -                     02/26/13 07/26/13           - Service 
Provider

02-26-13: MOVING EXPENSES FOR PARCEL I-015-CL-576 R1 
PROJECT NEON FOR THE KEY FOUNDATION, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV19711001160

23 07013 00 AERO AIR, LLC WING SPAR 
INSPECTION AERO 840

N 50,000.00            -                  50,000.00        -                     03/07/13 06/30/13           - Service 
Provider

03-07-13: INSPECTION AND POSSIBLE REPAIR OF AERO 
COMMANDER 840 WING SPAR. CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
NV20131128086

24 08013 00 MOVE 4 LESS MOVE PCL I-015-CL-576 
R1 NEON

N 6,668.00              -                  6,668.00          -                     03/11/13 04/30/13           - Service 
Provider

03-12-13: MOVING EXPENSES FOR PARCEL I-015-CL-576 R1 
PROJECT NEON FOR THE KEY FOUNDATION, CLARK 
COUNTY.  NV B/L#: NV20041105072

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 7 of 19



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

25 32312 00 AMEC ENVIRONMENTAL & 
INFRAST

SUE SVCS KINGSBURY 
GRADE

Y 69,962.00            -                  69,962.00        -                     03/12/13 11/08/14           - Service 
Provider

03-12-13: SUBSURFACE UTILITY WORK NEEDED FOR THE SR 
207 KINGSBURY GRADE ROADBED RECONSTRUCTION AND 
OVERLAY PROJECT, DOUGLAS COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV1941068475

26 30208 04 CH2M HILL DESIGN REFINEMENT 
PROJECT NEON

Y 34,063,775.35* (6,152,439.08) 27,911,333.27  -                     09/25/08 12/31/14           - Service 
Provider

4-8-13 AMD4: REDUCE TOTAL AUTHORITY BY $6,152,439.08 
TO BRING TOTAL TO $27,911,333.27 DUE TO CHANGE IN 
PROJECT DELIVERY METHOD AND CHANGE IN SCOPE OF 
SERVICES REQUIRING A NEW AGREEMENT (NOTE THIS 
AGREEMENT IS RELATED TO AGREEMENT #09113 LOCATED 
ON LINE ITEM #2 OF THE AGREEMENTS FOR APPROVAL 
REPORT)
6-30-11 AMD3: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $16,958,350.35 
TO BRING TOTAL TO $34,063,772.35 TO INCLUDE FINAL 
DESIGN SERVICES AND INCREASE RIGHT OF WAY 
ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES
8-23-10 AMD2: REFINE SCOPE OF WORK, EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE, AND ADD AUTHORITY BY $9,692,087.00 
TO BRING TOTAL TO $17,105,422.00 TO EXTEND DESIGN, 
UTILITY RELOCATION AND RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION 
ACTIVITIES
9-26-09 AMD1: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $2,741,572.00 TO 
$7,413,336.00 TO CONTINUE PRELIMINARY DESIGN AND 
COMPLETE NEPA STUDIES
9/25/08: $4,671,764.00 TO PERFORM CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 
REFINEMENT SERVICES FOR PROJECT NEON.

* NOT ORIGINAL AGREEMENT TOTAL… PLEASE SEE NOTES

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 8 of 19



Attachment  

C 

Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 9 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 10 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 11 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 12 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 13 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 14 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 15 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 16 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 17 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 18 of 19



Contracts, Agreements and Settlements 
                                          Page 19 of 19













































































 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

March 13, 2013 
 

TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director 
SUBJECT: April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
ITEM #11: Approval of Amendments and Administrative Modifications to the FFY 

2012-2015 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – For 
Possible Action. 

 

Summary: 

At the October 10, 2011 State Transportation Board of Directors Meeting, the FY 2012 – 2015 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) was approved as a part of the FY 
2012-2021 Transportation Systems Projects (TSP). Amendments and Administrative 
Modifications are made throughout the year to the document in order to facilitate projects.  
NDOT staff works closely with the local Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO’s) and local 
governments to facilitate these project changes.  Attachment “A” lists Administrative 
Modifications and other state program projects.  NDOT is requesting the State Transportation 
Board’s approval of these changes as summarized in Attachment “A”. 
 
Background:  
 
NDOT staff works continuously all year with federal and regional agencies, local governments, 
and planning boards to develop the Transportation System Projects notebook. The fiscal years 
2012-2021 document contains the: 

 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), FY 2012-2015 
Annual Work Program (AWP), FY 2012 
Short Range Element (SRE), FY 2013-2014 
Long Range Element (LRE), FY 2015-2021 
 

Attachment “A” details Amendments to projects which include any actions taken in Washoe, 
Clark, CAMPO, and TMPO Transportation Improvement Plans (TIP) and areas outside of the 
MPO boundaries since the last time the Board approved changes to the STIP on February 11, 
2013.  

 
Attachment “B” details Administrative Modifications to projects which include any actions taken 
in Washoe, Clark, CAMPO, and TMPO Transportation Improvement Plans (TIP) and areas 
outside of the MPO boundaries since the last time the Board approved changes to the STIP on 
February 11, 2013. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



 

 

 
 
Analysis: 
 
The attached listing of amendments and administrative modifications to projects are those 
completed since the February 11, 2013 Transportation Board approval of the Transportation 
System Projects notebook for fiscal years 2012-2021. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 

Approval of the Amendments/Administrative Modifications to the FY 2012 – 2015 Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 

 
List of Attachments: 
 
A. List of Amendments 
B. List of Administrative Modifications 
 
Prepared by: 

Tom Greco, Assistant Director Planning 



 Attachment A 

Transportation Board Meeting April 8, 2013: Amendments List 

 
Project Amendments List (1/18/13 – 3/12/13) 

 
RTC of Southern Nevada  

RTCSN Submittal of their FY 2013-2016 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP): 
• adopts the RTCSN TIP 

 
Clark Amendment #1 to the 2012-2015 STIP:   

• incorporates the RTCSN TIP into the STIP by adding new projects, moving existing 
projects, and adjusting funding amounts and funding sources for existing projects  

 
STIP funding source pages revised/created in association with this action
Clark 1 – 26 (All Clark County STIP pages) 

: 

• (note that Clark pages 11, 12, 14, 17-21, 23, 24 have been removed and replaced with a 
blank page as the previous funding sources are not identified in the new FY 2013 TIP)  

State 1 (National Highway System)   State 11 (State Gas Tax) 
State 3 (High Priority, SAFETEA LU)  State 15 (Trans, Comm, & Sys Preservation) 
State 4 (Transportation Improvements)   State 27 (State Match – Arizona) 
State 5 (Bonded Project)     State 28 (State Match – Nevada) 
State 6 (Forest Highways)     State 30 (SPR Funds – Nevada) 
State 7 (Public Lands Highways)   State 35 (FY2010 Omnibus Approp Act) 
State 9 (Interstate Maintenance – Discretionary) 
 
 

 
Washoe County RTC 

(NO AMENDMENTS MADE) 
 

 
Carson Area MPO 

(NO AMENDMENTS MADE) 
 

 
Tahoe MPO 

TMPO Submittal of their FY 2013-2016 Federal Transportation Improvement Program 
(FTIP): 

• adopts the TMPO FTIP 
 
TMPO Amendment #2 to the 2012-2015 STIP:   

• incorporates the TMPO FTIP into the STIP by adding new projects, moving existing 
projects, and adjusting funding amounts and funding sources for existing projects 

 
STIP funding source pages revised/created in association with this action
State 11 (State Gas Tax)     

: 

Lake Tahoe 1 (Local Transportation Funds (TMPO))  



 Attachment A 

Transportation Board Meeting April 8, 2013: Amendments List 

Lake Tahoe 2 (FTA Section 5309 – Fixed Guideway Modernization (TMPO))   
Lake Tahoe 3 (Scenic Byway)   
Lake Tahoe 4 (FTA Section 5311 – Non Urbanized (TMPO)) 
Lake Tahoe 5 (FTA Section 5317 - New Freedom Program (TMPO)).  
Lake Tahoe 6 (Federal Lands Highways Program (TMPO)) 
 

 
Statewide/Rural 

Statewide Amendment #5 to the 2012-2015 STIP: 
• adds the following projects using FTA Section 5311 Small Urban & Rural Public 

Transportation funds:  
• XS20130002 - Silver State Trailways: Intercity Service from Las Vegas to Reno  
• HU20130002 - Humboldt County Senior Center: Construction of a Building to 

House Vehicles 
• XS20130003 - Capital Paratransit Vans for Miscellaneous Subrecipients 

 
• removes the following projects from the FTA Section 5311 Small Urban & Rural Public 

Transportation fund source and deletes from the STIP: 
• NV20120003 -  Fallon Industries: Operating & Administrative Expenses for 

Disabled Demand Response Service 
• NV20120009 - Pahrump Senior Center Transit Service: Operating & 

Administrative Expenses for Demand Response Service 
 

• moves the following project from FTA Section 5310 Small Urban & Rural Public 
Transportation fund source to FTA Section 5311 Small Urban & Rural Public 
Transportation fund source: 

• NV20120001 - Churchill County (CART) Transit Service in Fallon and 
Surrounding Area: Operating & Administrative Expenses for a Deviated Fixed 
Route and Demand Response Transit 

 
• revises funding sources for Elko 3-R projects EL20100047, EL20100048, & 

EL20090035 for the construction of curb, gutter, and sidewalk from State to Federal 
funds utilizing STP 5-200K and STP Statewide fund sources 
 

• makes adjustments to FY12 – FY15 funding amounts for projects under FTA Section 
5310 & 5311 Small Urban & Rural Public Transportation funding sources, and adds 
Connected Vehicles Initiative – Installation of ITS Equipment in NDOT Vehicle Fleet to 
the 2012-2015 STIP utilizing Integrated Mobile Observation Project funds 

 
STIP funding source pages revised in association with this action
State 2 (STP Statewide)    

: 

State 21 (FTA Section 5311 Small Urban & Rural Public Transportation)  
State 23 (FTA Section 5310 Small Urban & Rural Public Transportation)  
State 28 (State Match – Nevada) 
State 33 (Integrated Mobile Observation Project – Nevada Testbed) 
State 34 (STP 5 – 200K)   



 Attachment B 

Transportation Board Meeting April 8, 2013: Administrative Modifications List 
 

 
List of Administrative Modifications (1/18/13 – 3/12/13) 

 

 
RTC of Southern Nevada  

(NO ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS MADE) 
 

 
Washoe County RTC 

(NO ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS MADE) 
 

 
Carson Area MPO 

(NO ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS MADE) 
 

 
Tahoe MPO 

(NO ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS MADE) 
 

 
Statewide/Rural 

(NO ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS MADE) 
 
 
 



 
                  
 

 

March 18, 2013 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To:  Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
From:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
Subject: April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #12: Approval of the first Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the Carlin 

Tunnels Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) Project – For possible 
action 

 
 
Summary: 
 
The Nevada Department of Transportation is seeking approval by the Board of Directors to 
award the following Construction Contract to Q&D Construction Inc. for a negotiated 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) not to exceed $2,818,944.00.  The GMP was achieved in 
accordance with the Department’s Pioneer Program Process for Construction Manager at Risk 
(CMAR) procurements as approved by the Board on December 12, 2011, and in accordance 
with applicable sections of Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) Chapter 338.  The CMAR 
procurement process requires Board review and approval of the CMAR construction contract 
after its negotiation by the parties. 
 
This is the first of two or more GMPs.  Based on the current preconstruction schedule, The 
Board of Directors can expect a second GMP presented at the May 2013 Transportation Board 
meeting.   
 
Background: 
 
The Department proposes to extend the service life of Interstate 80 (I-80) in Elko County from 
milepost EL-7.5 to milepost EL-9.33.  This section of I-80 carries eastbound and westbound 
traffic through a local canyon and over the Humboldt River.  To address existing roadway 
deficiencies, the Project includes the following elements; 
 

• Reconstructing the roadway pavement; 
• Rehabilitating and seismically retrofitting Carlin Canyon Bridge #1, #2, #3, and #4; and  
• Repairing and upgrading the Carlin Tunnels, including improvements to the existing 

lighting in the Tunnels. 
 
In December 2012, the Department assembled the Project Team consisting of Q&D 
Construction Inc. (Q&D), Stanley Consultants (ICE), and NDOT Design Team (Engineer) to 
implement the CMAR process.  Team collaboration improved constructability; identified, 
evaluated, and mitigated project risks; finalized the design plans and specifications; and 
developed schedules and cost estimates.  These efforts culminated in a finalized bid package 
upon which a negotiated GMP bid was submitted by Q&D, the CMAR contractor. 
 
 

 
 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



 
Analysis: 
 
With the help of the Contractor, the Project Team developed the goal to maximize the 
construction work performed in 2013 and reduce the overall construction schedule.  A late start 
in 2013 restricts operations by the contractor before the winter shutdown.  This start makes it 
unrealistic to complete the Project within two seasons, and extends the construction contract to 
2015.  A third construction season increases cost to the Project and extends impacts to highway 
users.  In achieving this goal, it was critical to identify opportunities to commence construction 
on portions of the work before all of the design is complete.  The work for the first GMP 
includes: 
 

• Coldmilling and Placing Plantmix Bituminous Surface on the Detour Road (Old US-
40); 

• Paving Interstate Crossovers; and 
• Purchasing Lighting Fixtures. 

 
Q&D, the ICE, and the Engineer each evaluated the design plans, assessed project risks, and 
independently prepared an Opinions of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) at specified 
Milestones during the design process: 
 

• The NDOT Design team advanced design plans based on the input of Q&D. 
• During the risk workshops the Project Team identified, evaluated, and mitigated 

Project risks which resulted in schedule reduction and construction costs savings. 
• At each OPCC the Engineer, the ICE, and Q&D submitted independent estimates of 

construction costs which were reviewed and discussed by the Project Team.   
• Early construction work and long-lead items were identified to reduce cost and 

minimize the impact to the traveling public. 
• Following the final OPCC and prior to the GMP, the Department began negotiations 

with Q&D. 
• The final Project documents for Package 1 were placed into NDOT’s electronic 

bidding system and both Q&D and the ICE bid the project separately and 
independently.   

 
The attached Concurrence in Award (Attachment B) summarizes the work completed by the 
Project Team during the preconstruction development of the Project and summarizes the 
Construction Contract terms and conditions.  It also provides a summary of the primary issues 
considered in negotiation of the GMP and describes the Project completion milestones. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
A.  Pioneer Program CMAR Process (flowchart) 
B.  Concurrence in Award 
 
Prepared by:  
 
Dale Keller, Project Manager 



FHWA

Review &

Approval

Approve

R
e
je

c
t

Begin Solicitation Process

- Prepare CMAR RFP NRS 338.1692

- Prepare ICE and Designer RFP’s

- Select Members of Evaluation Panel

  NRS 338.1693

- Develop Evaluation Criteria and Plan

  NRS 338.1693

Approve

NDOT CMAR Process
November 7, 2011

Legend
= Identification Phase

= Solicitation Phase

= Evaluation Phase

= Award/Implementation  Phase

Project

Delivery

Selection

Process

Issue Request

for Proposal(s)

Evaluation and

Determination

of Ranking

Terminology

RFP = Request for Proposal

GMP   = Guaranteed Maximum Price

ATTACHMENT A

SEP-14 Application

Negotiate Pre-

Construction

Contract

Final Design,

or Portion

Thereof

Board Review

and Approval

R
e
je

c
t

Approve

NRS 338.1692

NRS 338.1693 NRS 338.1693 NRS 338.1696

NRS 338.1696 and

NRS 338.1698

Accept

Accept

R
e

je
c
t

Board Review

and Approval

Advertise for

Bids

Approve

Construction,

or Portion

Thereof

Negotiate

GMP

NRS 338.1696

R
e

je
c
t

FHWA

Approval
Approve

R
e

je
c
t



ATTACHMENT B



 

 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 March 25, 2013   
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: April 8, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #13: Old Business 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment B. 
 
c. Fatality Report dated March 18, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated March 18, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Rudy Malfabon, Director 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP Pioneer Program  9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                    125,000.00 
Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                      80,000.00 
NDOT Agmt No. P282-09-002  Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                      30,000.00 

 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                      30,000.00 
 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                    365,000.00  $               630,000.00  $                 225,936.89 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Ad America

 8th JD  - 4 Eminent Domain Cases
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P301-11-004

6/14/2011 - 8/31/13 6/14/2011  $                    281,675.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  Expansion of Scope  $               281,675.00  $                   15,068.24 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00030 1B
 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)
 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                    150,000.00 

 $               150,000.00  $                   48,036.94 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00032 1B
Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)
 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 3/30/2015
Amendment #1

3/1/2012
2/18/13

 $150,000.00
$75,000.00 

$225,000.00  $               225,000.00  $                   71,781.17 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.

Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 
Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                      30,000.00 

 $                 30,000.00  $                   28,125.50 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Blue Diamond R.V. and Storage

 8th JD A610962
RE:  Work Order 20359000
NDOT Agmt No. P155-12-004

4/24/2012 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                    107,425.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  $                      88,250.00  $               195,675.00  $                   16,303.34 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Vegas Group, LLC

 8th JD A-12-661241-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P156-12-004

4/24/12 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $               541,800.00  $                 438,304.12 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders

8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $               541,800.00  $                 507,692.29 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall

 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $               541,800.00  $                 522,122.65 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust

 8th JD - 12-665880-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004

10/23/12 - 10/12/14 10/23/2012  $                    475,725.00 

 $               475,725.00  $                 451,439.28 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust

 8th JD - A-12-671920-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P476-12-004

11/16/12 - 11/30/15 11/16/2012  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 439,877.88 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF MARCH 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name

Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

G:\NDOT\004LegalManager\Board of Transportation\Outside Counsel Report NDOT Board of Director Meetings\Outside Counsel Contracts BOD 3-15-13.xls

Attachment A



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF MARCH 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name

Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA

 8th JD - A-12-658642-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    455,525.00 

 $               455,525.00  $                 439,583.89 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980

 8th JD - 
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 447,075.00 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC

 8th JD - A-12-671915-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 429,658.67 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation
NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004

12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/2012  $                    300,000.00 

 $               300,000.00  $                 209,567.00 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)

 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/2013 $205,250.00 

 $               205,250.00  $                 193,977.70 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff
8th JD - A-12-656578-C
Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013 $275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                 228,785.99 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Railroad Pass
8th JD - A-12-665330-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P072-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                 274,375.00 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt
8th JD - A-12-666050-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                 274,950.00 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus
Cactus Project - Las Vegas
8th JD - A-12-664403-C
NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    200,000.00 

 $               200,000.00  $                 199,925.00 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 

cecommendations, negotiation support and 

advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling 

of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                      77,750.00 

 $                 77,750.00  $                   77,750.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

G:\NDOT\004LegalManager\Board of Transportation\Outside Counsel Report NDOT Board of Director Meetings\Outside Counsel Contracts BOD 3-15-13.xls

Attachment A



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - March 15, 2013       

NDOT Owner's

Offer Demand Settlement Fees Costs Total

Condemnations

NDOT vs. 2.5 Acres @ Dean Martin, LLC Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 3,000.00$            None Presented

NDOT vs. AD America, Inc.  (Cactus - Direct) Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 360,000.00$        1,850,000.00$       56,683.75$   12,154.86$    68,838.61$     

NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust, Carmine V. Eminent domain  - Project Neon 247,000.00$        None Presented 8,430.00$     1,267.12$      9,697.12$       

NDOT vs. Falcon Capital Eminent domain  -  I-580 8,167.00$            33,589,000.00$     20,776,268.60$     

NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare Eminent domain  - Project Neon 1,860,000.00$     None Presented

NDOT vs. Gendall Trust Eminent domain  - Project Neon 1,645,000.00$     None Presented 17,903.50$   1,773.85$      19,677.35$     

NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC Eminent domain  - Project Neon 2,926,650.00$     5,878,228.00$       

NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC Eminent domain  - Project Neon 5,479,200.00$     10,788,490.00$     

NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 353,000.00$        1,900,000.00$       

NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders Eminent domain - Project Neon 883,400.00$        None Presented 30,675.00 3,432.71 34,107.71$     

NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 337,000.00$         $40,000,000 - 

$60,000,000 not 

including severance 

damages and 

prejudgment 

interest 

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 2,083,000.00$     9,000,000.00$       

NDOT vs. KP & TP, LLC, Roohani, Khusrow Eminent domain  - I-15 and Warm Springs 10,800.00$          101,900.00$          

NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA Eminent domain - Project Neon 1,901,300.00$     None Presented

NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 2,041,000.00$     12,700,000.00$     

NDOT vs. Union Pacific Railroad Co. Eminent domain - Recnstr.  of SR 317 None Presented

NDOT vs. Vegas Group, LLC Eminent domain - Project Neon 4,720,000.00$     None Presented 10,625,000.00$     77,565.52 25,930.63 103,496.15$   

NDOT vs. Woodcock, Jack Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 63,500.00$          250,000.00$          

NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 1,286,303.00$     10,000,000.00$     

Case Name
J

u
Nature of Case

Outside Counsel to Date

Page 1

Attachment B



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - March 15, 2013       

Plaintiff's

Prayer/Offer Settlement Fees Costs Total
Inverse Condemnations

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (Cactus-Inverse) Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 20,653.75$      2,794.61$       23,448.36$      

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON-Inverse) Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 143,282.00$    18,169.87$     161,451.87$    

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (SouthPoint) Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 12,448.55$      419.37$          12,867.92$      

Blue Diamond RV & Storage vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road 875,000.00$   163,094.22$    16,277.44$     179,371.66$    

MLK-ALTA vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

NV Energy vs. Highland A.V.A and NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

NV Energy vs. Westcare Works and NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

P8 Arden, LLC vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road 650,000.00$   

Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 23,087.50 1,198.22 24,285.72$      

Rural Telephone vs. Dorsey Ln, NDOT Public utility seeks permanent easement

Torts

Allstate Insur. vs. Las Vegas Paving;NDOT Plaintiff alleges property damage and negligence

Austin, Renee vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Calkins, Allan Bruce vs. Baptista vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence personal injury (3rd party)

Chadwick, Estate of Lonnie Joe vs. NDOT Estate alleges transfer of property without court order

Ewasko vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence in design of truck ramp

Harper, Kenneth J. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence/personal injury/wrongful death

Marshall, Charles vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges personal injury

NDOT vs. Tamietti NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access

State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence in failure to maintain roadway

Tefft vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff's allege breached duty in construction of median

Contract Disputes

Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3377, SR 207 146,752.50$    6,466.33$       153,218.83$    

Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3407, US-93 98,694.00$      3,269.06$       101,963.06$    

Pacific Coast Steel vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays/incomplete design on I-580 Galena 33,306.00$      600.28$          33,906.28$      

Personnel Matters

Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment violation - discrimination

Cooper, Jennifer vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff appeals trial verdict of alleged decrimination

Lau, Stan vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff is appealing termination

Case Name
J

u
Nature of Case

Outside Counsel to Date

Page 2

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  3/18/2013

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Yesterday Crashes Fatals Yesterday Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

3/17/2013 2 2 3/17/2012 3 3 -1 -1
MONTH 9 9 MONTH 13 13 -4 -4
YEAR 55 57 YEAR 53 57 2 0

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY 2012 2013 % 2012 2013 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 3 3
CHURCHILL
CLARK 41 40 -2.4% 45 42 -6.7% 13 4 -69.2% 13 4 -69.2%
DOUGLAS 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 1
ELKO 2 -100.0% 2 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
ESMERALDA
EUREKA 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
HUMBOLDT 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
LANDER 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
LINCOLN 2 2 1 1
LYON 1 1 1 1
MINERAL 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
NYE 3 2 -33.3% 3 2 -33.3%
PERSHING
STOREY
WASHOE 2 6 200.0% 2 6 200.0% 1 2 100.0% 1 2 100.0%
WHITE PINE

YTD 53 55 3.8% 57 57 0.0% 16 9 -100.0% 16 9 -43.8%
TOTAL 12 234 ----- -76.5% 258 ----- -77.9% 37 -75.68% 42 ----- -78.57%

2012 AND 2013 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2012 2013 % Motor- Motor- % 2012 2013 % 2012 2013

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change Other Other

CARSON 1 2
CHURCHILL
CLARK 23 26 13.0% 9 11 22.2% 8 4 -50.0% 1 1 0.0% 1
DOUGLAS 1 1 -100.0%
ELKO 2 -100.0%
ESMERALDA
EUREKA 1 -100.0%
HUMBOLDT 1 -100.0%
LANDER 1 -100.0%
LINCOLN 2
LYON 1
MINERAL 1 -100.0%
NYE 1 -100.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 1 -100.0%
PERSHING
STOREY
WASHOE 1 3 200.0% 1 1 0.0% 2
WHITE PINE

YTD 31 34 9.7% 12 15 25.0% 8 7 -12.5% 2 1 -50.0% 1 0
TOTAL 12 156 -78.21% 58 -74.14% 37 -81.08% 3 -66.67% 4

Total 2012 258

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C


	Agenda
	Item 2 
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Attachment A
	Line Item 1
	Line Item 2
	Line Item 3


	Item 8
	Attachment A
	Line Item 1
	Line Item 2


	Item 9
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	Item 10a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6
	Attachment 7

	Item 10b
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6

	Item 11
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	Item 12
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	Item 13
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C




